
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
January 28, 2014 

5:15 p.m. 
Administration Boardroom 

Agenda 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Mission Statement 
Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient centered care in a sustainable manner.                                         

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL   

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – December 19, 2013 (Pg. 4)  

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Executive Committee – Kristen Bomengen reports  

A. Memorandum of Understanding with CBJ & BRH (recommend approval) (Pg. 16) 
B. Dahl Memorial Clinic (recommend approval) (Pg. 18) 
C. Board agenda format 

 
Finance Committee – Lauree Morton reports (Pg. 12) 

 A.  December Financials (recommend approval) (Pg. 30) 
 B. June 2013 Audit presentation (recommend acceptance) (Pg. 43)   

 
Planning Committee – Nathan Peimann, MD, reports (Pg. 57) 

 Electronic Medical Records System recap from presentation 
• Reformulate IT Steering Committee  

 
Quality Committee – Nancy Davis reports (Pg. 60) 

A. Utility Systems Management Plan (Pg. 63) 
B. Medical Equipment Management Plan (Pg. 69) 
C. Safety Management Plan (Pg. 75) 
D. Security Management Plan (Pg. 80) 
E. Life Safety Management Plan (Pg. 102) 
F. 2014 Infection Control Plan (Pg. 107) 

 
 
AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

CEO Selection Committee – Linda Thomas reports 

Bylaws Committee – Mary Borthwick reports (Pg.118) 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Board Education Plan (recommend approval) (Pg. 142) 
B. ER Call strategy recommendations (recommend approval)  
C. Clinical Microsystems vs. Bartlett Microsystems (informational) 
D. Electronic Medical Records System  
 

COMMUNITY BOARD UPDATES: 
BRH Foundation – Linda Thomas reports 
Rainforest Recovery Board – Alex Malter, MD, reports 

 
CEO report – Jeff Egbert reports 
 
Chief of Staff report – Amy Dressel, MD, reports (Pg. 144) Page 1 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
 
 
Board President’s report – Kristen Bomengen reports 

• Committee assignments (Pg. 147) 

New Business  
A. February calendar (Pg. 150) 
B. Annual Calendar (Pg. 151) 
C. Board Comments 

 
Executive session to discuss matters which are confidential by law and impact the finances of the hospital which 
include; 
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A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

Board of Directors Minutes 12-19-2013 
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3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Board of Directors 

Minutes 
12/19/2013 

 
Called to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
Roll call 
 
Present 
Linda Thomas, President Reed Reynolds, Vice President 
Bob Storer, Past President Kristen Bomengen 
Mary Borthwick  Lauree Morton 
Nancy Davis (by phone)  
 
Absent 
Nathan Peimann, MD  Alex Malter, MD 
 
Others present 
Jeff Egbert, CEO  Billy Gardner, CNO 
Mila Cosgrove, HR  Toni Petrie, Executive Assistant 
Mark Johnson 
 
Ms. Thomas introduced Mark Johnson who was appointed to the Bartlett Board of 
Directors by the City Assembly this month. His term will start January 1, 2014.  Mr. 
Johnson gave a brief background of his experience in healthcare.  
 
Ms. Thomas also congratulated Ms. Borthwick and Ms. Morton for their re-appointments 
to the Board.  
 
Public participation – Jim Strader thanked Mr. Reynolds for his years of service on the 
Board of Directors.  
 
Ms. Borthwick made a MOTION to approve the minutes from the November 26, 2013 
board meeting. Ms. Bomengen seconded and they were approved as presented.  
 

Old business – Mr. Egbert asked the Board to reconsider the motion they made 
in August regarding the call coverage that reads “The Board accepts the 
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recommendation on behalf of the Medical Staff executive committee to 
require that physicians take eighteen (18) days per quarter, distributed 
proportionately between weekends and weekdays. Mr. Storer amended the 
motion to include this will be for one quarter starting October 1st, 2013 
ending on December 31st, 2013 no remuneration is involved.” He said he is 
working with the groups of specialists separately, to determine levels of call 
burden and required remuneration. Dr. Ben Miller said he has been working on 
this issue for 15 months and has made zero progress until Mr. Egbert got here.  
 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to rescind the previous motion and directed the CEO 
to negotiate with the physicians a reasonable call solution.  Mr. Reynolds 
seconded and it passed by a roll call vote. 
 
Standing committee reports  
 
Executive Committee - Mr. Reynolds presented a board education plan to be completed 
over the next two years.  Ms. Thomas is asking the Board to review the document and 
then bring it back up for discussion in January for action.  This plan envisions an initial 
then ongoing orientation program.  
 
Mr. Egbert commended Mr. Reynolds for the detail and completeness of the plan. He 
feels the responsibility for execution needs to be built into the CEO Job Description. This 
comprehensive plan will be the basis for an annual budget for Board education. Mr. 
Egbert feels it is the CEO’s responsibility to make sure it’s hard wired into the budget.  
Mr. Storer agrees that this will only work with the CEO’s support and said that anything 
this complex should have a month of reviewing then brought back in a month to take 
action.  
 
Ms. Thomas said she would be happy to work with the CEO on keeping this going on 
behalf of the Board. Ms. Borthwick asked if this will be built into the budget. Mr. Egbert 
said next month he could put together a 2 year estimated education budget. Ms. Thomas 
thanked Reed for the work he put together. 
 
Finance Committee – Ms. Morton reports 
The November financials and dashboards were reviewed (see attached).  
 
Capital Budget items – This is just an FYI, there are no new capital items to bring 
forward at this time, however the Finance Committee has asked to keep this a standing 
agenda item. Mr. Brough said he has asked the department leaders to get a schedule 
put together for next year’s capital budget request items.  

The Committee also looked at the EHR incentive program and we have met the criteria 
to receive those funds, slightly in the excess of $900,000. It’s just a matter of time until 
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we will receive that payment.  We also reviewed the Medicare Cost Report. We need to 
realize that we are currently getting about $3.7 million dollars from the demonstration 
project and if that ends that is a loss that we won’t easily be able to recover. There are 
22 hospitals across the nation that are participating in these demonstration projects. 
Three of them are in Alaska and ASHNHA is keeping an eye on this as is our federal 
delegation. This is something we need to pay attention to in the upcoming year.  

We also received an update that we have signed the agreement to become a preferred 
provider with AETNA for State employees that are not part of different unions, retirees 
and exempt service. They will be able to access BRH as a preferred provider as the 
State switches to AETNA January 1, 2014.  

Ms. Morton made a MOTION to accept the financial statements.  Mr. Storer 
seconded and they were approved as presented.  
 
Planning Committee – Ms. Bomengen reports 
Ms. Bomengen said Mr. Egbert handed out committee charter descriptions on how to be 
more effective. They became fairly enthusiastic about this plan and encouraged the full 
Board to develop charters for all committees of the Board. They also discussed the need 
to update the 3-5 year strategic plan.  
 
Quality Committee – Ms. Davis reports 

There’s a desire to have quality be a bigger part of the Board’s agenda so that the entire 
board is able to internalize the quality the hospital is working on. Elevating and/or 
expanding quality should be part of the Board’s normal discussion and work plan.  

There are two elements from the Quality Committee meeting that require action. Ms. 
Davis made a MOTION to approve the BRH Risk Management plan for 2014 and to 
approve the Patient Safety Quality Assessment Improvement Plan.  Ms. Morton 
seconded and it was approve by a roll call vote.  Ms. Bomengen pointed out the 
changes to upgrade the Microsystems program and going to a Bartlett Microsystems 
plan.  The items are very straight forward now and understandable by anyone. Bethany 
Rogers was the author of these documents.  Mr. Reynolds wanted to offer 
congratulations to Bethany and her staff for the fine work on these documents.   

Ms. Thomas said when we approved Clinical Microsystems it was at a significant cost 
and wants to know what financial impact this has on our organization. Mr. Egbert will 
research and report back to the Board at its January meeting. 

 

CEO Recruitment – Ms. Bomengen reports 

There was a CEO recruitment timeline included in the board packet for review. Ms. 
Bomengen said we are still hoping to get the CEO Job Description posted this week.  A 
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brief one page summary and a booklet have been prepared that will be provided to 
candidates as they get past the first step. The hopes were to have this posted before the 
holidays.  Mr. Reynolds said there wasn’t anything about quality in the new brochure and 
something should be in there since that is our new mission and to also include 
education.  

Ms. Davis asked if just sending in an application means their names become public. Ms. 
Cosgrove said yes, if we are asked to release names we are required to comply.  Ms. 
Cosgrove has had the City Attorney look at the pertinent case law. Ms. Thomas said she 
would be curious if this is an issue for other community hospitals outside of Alaska. She 
also feels we could be giving up good candidates that normally would apply if their 
names were made public upon applying.  Ms. Bomengen suggested some changes to 
the format of the bullets that were provided. She wanted to focus more on the medical 
services before the behavioral services. Ms. Thomas said she didn’t want to exclude 
someone that had the experience, but not necessarily having a Master’s Degree. If the 
word preferred was used regarding the Masters Degree, that would suffice. Ms. Morton 
agreed with this recommendation.  The committee is looking at developing their criteria 
for the selection process in January for the entire board to be involved in.  Ms. 
Bomengen thanked Ms. Cosgrove for all her work. 

Bylaws Committee – Ms. Borthwick reports 

The CBJ attorneys have gotten back to the committee with their changes and the 
committee is asking to put it on the January board agenda in order to have time to 
review those recommendations. 

Nominating Committee – Ms. Borthwick 

Ms. Borthwick made a MOTION to nominate Ms. Bomengen for President, Mr. 
Storer for Vice President and Ms. Davis for Secretary. Ms. Morton seconded and it 
was approved by a roll call vote.  

BRH Foundation – Kristen Bomengen reported: The Foundation held their annual Tree 
Lighting event and it was very well attended. They have initiated a search for a new 
Director. Lisa Corcoran was announced as the newest Foundation Board member. 
There are two Board positions still left to fill. Mr. Egbert thanked BRH Foundation for 
their donation for the SANE training.   Ms. Morton added because of the fundraising 
efforts there’s going to be a sexual assault training here March 24th. This will be 
specifically for Southeast Alaska (Adults).  

Ms. Thomas said we asked Jim Strader to prepare a brief newsletter for Alumni and it’s 
been prepared and waiting for a memo from the president. Ms. Thomas will do that  
soon.   

Ms. Thomas requested a brief recess 7:05.  
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Back in session at 7:10 p.m.  

CEO report – There are six Rural Health Physician Contracts for approval for Dr. 
Valentine, Dr. Kim, Dr. Dressel, Dr. Nate Peimann, Dr. Maier and Dr. Ludwig. Ms. 
Thomas asked if they had been reviewed by CBJ Attorney’s office and Mr. Monkman, 
and it was affirmed. 

Mr. Reynolds made a MOTION to approve the six Rural Health Physician Contracts 
as presented. Mr. Storer seconded and they were approved by a roll call vote. 

Physician billing agreement with Dr. Dostal – Ms. Thomas asked if they had been 
reviewed by CBJ Attorney’s office and Mr. Monkman, and it was affirmed. Mr. Reynolds 
made a MOTION to approve the contract as presented. Ms. Bomengen seconded 
and it was approved by a roll call vote.  

There was a Physician employment with Dr. Robert Schults, staff psychiatrist. The 
agreement is the same as the prior agreement with an additional 3 year term. Ms. 
Thomas asked if they had been reviewed by CBJ Attorney’s office and Mr. Monkman, 
and it was affirmed.  Mr. Storer made a MOTION to approve a Physician 
Employment Agreement with Dr. Schults.  Ms. Bomengen seconded and it was 
approved by a roll call vote. 

Ms. Thomas asked that in the future all contractual agreements presented to the Board 
have a signatory “checklist” sheet that verifies review by appropriate parties of the 
contract so that we don’t have to ask the question on every contract.  

CEO Update – Jeff Egbert reports:  Employee forums were held in December. There 
were approximately 30 employees in attendance. The second Issue of Bartlett Buzz was 
distributed. There has been good response to this newsletter.   

EHR - Mr. Egbert is still planning to come forward in January with a formal 
recommendation and a 3-5 year strategic plan for an EHR. Mr. Egbert also discussed 
contracting with Cornerstone Healthcare Group to accomplish this goal. Cornerstone 
specializes in providing support and making recommendations for EHR systems. They 
can have someone onsite and available for groups of interested parties on January 9th.  
Additionally Cornerstone will do an assessment on our IT infrastructure on how we 
should optimally be structured as a department to support our information management 
needs.  We could consider retaining this group as a long term hospital partner and 
advisor.  Cornerstone can be available to us with their expertise and make an 
assessment of our IT department with a $25,000 retainer.  Mr. Egbert thinks this is a 
good solution for the hospital.  Mr. Storer likes this and asked if it complies with 
procurement rules. Mr. Egbert said he would work with CBJ resources to properly 
arrange for these services.  Mr. Storer said with expanded duties, we will we see a more 
structured plan on potentially expanding the relationship with this group. Mr. Egbert said 
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the ongoing relationship would be discussed and if it makes sense to proceed, an RFP 
would be developed.  

Mr. Reynolds made a MOTION for Mr. Egbert to retain Cornerstone Healthcare 
Group for consulting for the EHR in alignment with CBJ procurement rules. Not to 
exceed $25,000 plus expenses. Bob seconded and it passed by a roll call vote. 

Mr. Egbert read through ASHNA’s Legislative plan Bills to watch next session including: 

House Bill 6 – Guidelines for auditing pharmacy records. 

House Bill 7 – Practice of Naturopathy. 

House Bill 44 – Advance Healthcare Directives Registry 

House Bill 53 – Establishing a consultation requirement for opiates prescription under 
certain circumstances. 

House Bill 141 – Setting the fees for medical treatment or services performed outside 
Alaska under Workers Compensation and establishing a time limit for submitting bill for 
treatment. 

House Bill 173 – Defining “medically necessary abortion” for the purposes of making 
payment under that state Medicaid program.  

House Joint Resolution 14 – Requesting the United States Congress and the Governor 
to take action necessary to delay implementation of the Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act. 

Senate Bill 8 – Guidelines for auditing pharmacy records. 

Senate Bill 30 – Teacher and Public Employees Retirement Plan. 

Senate Bill 49 – Defining “medically necessary abortion” for the purposes of making 
payment under that state Medicaid program.  

Senate Bill 90 – Relating to group insurance and self-insurance coverage for school 
district employees. 

Mr. Egbert announced Cynthia Brandt as the Interim CFO effective January 1, 2014.  It 
is a contracted position. The anticipated time is approximately 6 months.  The other 
vacant position is the Compliance Officer. Mr. Egbert is negotiating with John Wray for a 
smooth transition of his department.  He is working with Ms. Cosgrove and CBJ on the 
compliance function and how to best structure it moving forward to protect the 
organization.  Ms. Thomas said that after the OIG audit this year, the Board was acutely 
aware of the need for due diligence on compliance.  
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Me. Egbert provided an update on several very productive meetings with CBJ 
departments. We are working on streamlining the processes between the hospital and 
CBJ Departments.  Ms. Thomas said one of the things that was discussed was they are 
revisiting ordinances and there may be some things that might not work well for us that 
we can work with CBJ on possibly changing them if needed.  

President’s report – Ms. Thomas reports 

Ms. Thomas presented an award for Dr. Ben Miller for being Chief of Staff for 2013 
along with a certificate to the Foundation for an engraved leaf on the Giving Tree. 

She also presented Mr. Reynolds with a plaque for 9 years of service, along with a 
certificate to the Foundation for an engraved leaf on the Giving Tree. 

Mr. Storer, Ms. Thomas, and Mr. Egbert attended the CBJ Assembly Finance Committee 
meeting. The HR Services Agreement was discussed. She explained to the Committee 
that the Board made a motion in October to accept option 4 conceptually which was the 
integrated model.  She discussed that we were working currently without an agreement. 
Ms. Cosgrove is working on a letter of agreement for the City Manager to approve. The 
Executive Committee will review it. The Assembly wanted to know who would be 
reevaluating the agreement in 2015 and Ms. Thomas said the Board would do the 
evaluation.  

The other item discussed in executive session at the Assembly was that the Board had 
agreed to move forward in working with the union on negotiations. The Board needs to 
approve ratifying managements recommendations of a 2% wage increase and it will be 
subject to the union’s ratification. Mr. Storer made a MOTION to approve the union 
contract with a 2% wage increase for one year.  Ms. Bomengen seconded and it 
was approved unanimously by a roll call vote.  

Mr. Storer made a MOTION to go into executive session at 7:50 p.m., to discuss 
matters which are confidential by law to include a legal matter update, compliance 
report and credentialing report. Ms. Bomengen seconded and it was approved.  

Back in session 8:15 p.m.  

Mr. Reynolds made a MOTION to approve the credentialing report. Ms. Borthwick 
seconded and it was approved.  

Ms. Bomengen made a MOTION to accept the settlement agreement as presented.  
Ms. Borthwick seconded and it was approved by a roll call vote.  

Ms. Thomas noted that the Compliance Report was reviewed in executive session.   

Mr. Egbert is proposing to schedule Board committee meetings in week 2 of each 
month, then Finance the third Monday evening. Board packets will be put together 
Tuesday afternoon of the third week to be available in  Egnyte 7days in advance of the 
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Board meeting held the fourth Tuesday of each month. Mr. Egbert said it’s important not 
to move the board meetings around because a well produced packet is dependent on 
many processes that are being put into place. 

In January, we will develop the Board's agenda utilizing the consent agenda format.  

Committee assignments will be made up in January.  

Mr. Egbert handed out a book to the Board of Directors called a Culture of High 
Performance by the Studer Group. He has given this book out to the Directors of the 
hospital as well.  

Board comments: 

Mr. Storer said there have been a lot of positive momentums going on and thanked Mr. 
Egbert.  

Ms. Borthwick thanked Jim Strader for the Bartlett Buzz. She also said thank you to the 
food service department for providing the very good food for the BRH Foundation Tree 
Lighting Event.  

Mr. Reynolds gave Ms. Thomas a certificate for the Giving Tree and a plaque for her 
year as president for 2013.  

Ms. Thomas reflected on the accomplishments the Board has made over the year which 
she will put into an annual President’s report. 

 Meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m.  
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3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Executive Committee 
January 6, 2014 

Minutes 
 

Attendance: Kristen Bomengen, Linda Thomas, Bob Storer, Nate Peimann, MD, Nancy 
Davis (by phone), Mary Borthwick, Jeff Egbert, CEO, Mila Cosgrove, HR, Billy Gardner, 
CNO, Dick Monkman, Esq., and Toni Petrie. 
 
Ms. Bomengen called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m. 
 
CONTRACTS TO APPROVE: 
A Memorandum of Understanding between CBJ and BRH for shared Human Resource 
services was reviewed.  Ms. Cosgrove outlined the terms and her proposed staffing 
model. This agreement will be re-evaluated by Dec. 31, 2015, to assure that the 
arrangement is meeting the needs of both the city and the hospital. The city agreed to 
assist the hospital with recruiting a new HR director should the agreement be cancelled.  
 
Ms. Thomas said she worried the wording of the agreement might make it seem like 
we’re turning everything over to the city manager. She suggested that it be made clearer 
in the agreement that the hospital CEO has the final say in HR staffing for the hospital.  
This agreement was “conceptually” approved in September.  The CEO and the Board 
will still be in charge of the decisions of the hospital.  
 
ACTION: 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to move the Human Resources Memorandum of 
Understanding with BRH and CBJ to the full Board for approval with the 
suggested amendments made. Ms. Thomas seconded and it was approved. 
 
Dahl Memorial Clinic Pacs Agreement – This agreement has gone through CBJ legal 
review. This is a renewal contract.  Ownership of the records was not included in the 
agreement, and Ms. Davis wanted to have Mr. Monkman follow up to see if this would be 
an issue.  
 
Ms. Thomas made a MOTION to forward the Dahl Memorial Clinic Agreement to 
the Board subject to Mr. Monkman’s review.  Mr. Storer seconded and it was 
approved.  
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INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
Subsidy agreements – We had two agreements in place to help the clinics participate 
contractually with BRH in an Electronic Medical Record Interoperable Software Donation 
Agreement. One was with Dr. Hunter-Joerns and the other was with Glacier Pediatrics. 
This agreement was set to expire December 31, 2013.  The law was extended so Mr. 
Egbert sent them a letter as a follow-up to the letter stating CMS and the OIG 
announced an extension of the EHR donation program.  BRH will continue to meet its 
contractual obligations by paying 85% of the monthly charges until December 31, 2014. 
 
ER Call Agreement – Mr. Egbert has drafted an ER Call Agreement for Mr. Monkman’s 
review.  This agreement would be for the General Surgeons, Pediatricians and 
Orthopedic Surgeons.  The Pediatricians will receive $500 a day, the General Surgeons 
and the Orthopedic Surgeons will receive $1,000 a day.   
 
Standing Committee agenda review - Mr. Egbert would like to have the Executive 
Committee review the agenda items for the upcoming sub-committees each month. 
 
A draft of a proposed new format for the Board agenda was reviewed.   
 
With the consideration of going to a consent agenda, Dr. Peimann suggested that the 
Board to suspend the current agenda format in the manual with a majority vote.  
 
OLD BUSINESS:  
IT Strategic Plan Consultant – Keith Ryan, Consultant with Cornerstone Advisors, will 
be here Thursday, January 9th. He will address the previously submitted questions and 
answer any other questions the attendees may have.  Once that is finished, Mr. Egbert 
feels that this session will help us to determine next steps in moving forward. 
 
There will be people here from Meditech to demonstrate Meditech 6.1 and they will 
provide hands-on sessions in the computer lab for physicians. This will be the 14th and 
15th of January.  
 
Bylaws - Jane Sebens had more suggestions on the Bylaws which were included in the 
packet. They will be included in the full board packet for review.  
 
Minute format standardization - Mr. Egbert suggested standardizing the minutes for 
each committee. The committee was divided on the format. Concerns included whether 
the minutes would reflect enough information to show due diligence and the difficulty of 
reading fine print in the grid.  
 
Cruise Ship Tax Funding request – Mr. Egbert informed the committee that the 
application for the funds has been completed and submitted.   
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Medical Oncology – There is a group of three Medical Oncologists that have come to 
Juneau and spoken with Dr. Huang from Southeast Oncology. They are interested in 
doing 2- 3 days per week opposed to the 3 days a month like we have with Dr. Weiden.  
Dr. Peimann said it should go to the Medical Staff for discussion.  
 
Meeting plan 
Executive first week 
Planning second week 
Finance third week (Monday or Tuesday) 
 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to go into executive session at 1:08 p.m., to discuss 
personnel matters.  Ms. Thomas seconded and it was approved.  
 
The committee came out of executive session at 1:35 p.m. No action was taken. 
 
Board comments: 
 
Ms. Thomas asked to have a Foraker follow-up meeting. Ms. Thomas will spearhead this 
again.  
 
Ms. Thomas suggested they should to do an update for the Board/Alumni on the 
accomplishments over the past year.  
 
Meeting adjourned 1:42 p.m.  
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January 7, 2014 
 
 
Kristen Bomengen, Hospital Board Chair 
Jeff Egbert, Interim CEO 
Bartlett Regional Hospital 
3200 Hospital Drive 
Juneau, Alaska  99801 
 

RE: Shared Services Agreement 
Human Resource Services 

 
 
Dear Kristen and Jeff, 
 
This letter is intended to clarify the shared services agreement conceptually approved by Bartlett 
Regional Hospital Board of Directors at the September 23, 2013, regular board meeting, which 
became effective on October 1, 2013.  The memorandum dated September 9, 2013, and provided 
to the board at the September 23rd meeting is incorporated by reference.  This letter incorporates 
the changes requested by the BRH Executive Committee at your January 6, 2014, meeting. 
 
The shared services agreement shall be governed by the following guidelines: 
 

1. The CBJ Human Resources & Risk Management Department shall be responsible for the 
strategic and tactical operations of the BRH Human Resource Department, including the 
organization, selection, and management of human resource staff.  Changes to the level 
or FTE of staff resources of the BRH HR Department and changes to BRH HR policy 
direction are subject to approval by the BRH CEO.  The CBJ HR Director shall have an 
office at BRH and maintain regular hours.  
 

2. The total cost of staffing services to BRH for the shared services model shall not exceed 
the total budgeted staff personnel costs for the BRH Human Resource Department for 
FY14.  General increases to salary and benefits will be applied to that amount during the 
life of this agreement in the same manner as implemented for the rest of the non-
represented workforce. CBJ will provide to BRH a staffing model, including salary and 
benefits, for the shared services arrangement.  

 
3. The BRH Chief Executive Officer shall have input into the annual performance 

evaluation of the Human Resources & Risk Management Director.  Evaluation input 
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shall be received by the CBJ City Manager’s office no later January 15th of each calendar 
year of this agreement. 

 
4. The shared services agreement shall be re-evaluated on December 31, 2015, to assure 

that the arrangement is meeting the needs of both CBJ and BRH.  Should either party so 
desire, the agreement may be cancelled at that time.  In the event of cancellation, CBJ 
agrees to assist BRH with the recruitment and selection of a new HR director should 
such services be requested. 

 
We look forward to a productive and mutually beneficial relationship. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kimberly A. Kiefer 
City Manager 
 
 cc: Mila Cosgrove, Human Resources & Risk Management Director 
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
RELATING TO HEALTH CARE MANAGEMENT 

 
 This Memorandum of Understanding (“Agreement”) is entered on November 4, 2013,  

between the BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL (“Hospital”), a Department of the City and 

Borough of Juneau, Alaska, an Alaska municipality; and the DAHL MEMORIAL CLINIC, a 

Department of the Municipality of Skagway, Alaska, an Alaska municipality (“Clinic”) 

(individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”), to provide Clinic access to Hospital’s 

PACS (Picture Archive Communication System) so that Clinic’s imaging studies may be stored 

in Hospital’s PACS, and so that those studies may be interpreted by Clinic’s contracted 

radiologists. 

 

 1.  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be two years (“Term”) 

commencing December 1, 2013 and terminating on November 30, 2015. 

 

2. Scope of Agreement. This Agreement is to provide Clinic access to Hospital’s 

PACS (Picture Archive Communication System) to allow storage and interpretation of Clinic’s 

imaging studies.  Clinic agrees that it will follow Hospital’s protocols and procedures for access 

to Hospital’s PAC, and that it will take all reasonable and prudent precautions to maintain the 

integrity and security of Hospital’s PAC. 

 

3. Fees. The Clinic shall pay the Hospital $17.00 (Seventeen Dollars) per 

examination stored in Hospital’s PACS.  Fees will be billed monthly. 

 

4. No Patient Care. The Hospital does not by this Agreement undertake any 

responsibility for any patient care or professional medical judgments. Patient care and all other 

matters requiring professional medical judgments are the exclusive responsibility of the Clinic 

and the Clinic’s health care professionals.  

 

 5.  No professional services. The Hospital does not by this Agreement undertake 

any responsibility whatsoever to provide professional services to the Clinic, including medical 

services, legal services, audit services, accounting services, expert witness services, grant 
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writing, facility master planning, architectural or engineering services, construction program 

management, strategic quality management services, software development, website 

development or monthly hosting. 

  

 6. Compliance with law.  The Parties: 

 

6.1 intend to fully comply with 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b), commonly 

known as the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1395nn, 

commonly known as Stark II, and with all other federal and state 

law provisions governing fraud and abuse or self-referrals under 

the Medicare and Medicaid programs and other federal health care 

programs, as those rules may be amended;  

6.2 agree to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996, 42 U.S.C. ' 132d (HIPAA) and all 

current and future regulations promulgated under HIPAA, 

including without limitation the federal privacy regulations 

contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, the federal security 

standards contained in 45 C.F.R. Part 142, and the federal 

standards for electronic transactions contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 

160 and 162, to the extent applicable to the Parties. Each Party 

agrees not to use or further disclose any protected health 

information (45 C.F.R. ' 164.501) or individually identifiable 

information (42 U.S.C. ' 1320d), other than as permitted by law; 

6.3 agree to comply with all other State, Federal and local laws, 

regulations or ordinances that are applicable to the Hospital, the 

Clinic and this Agreement.  

6.4 agree that in the event any court or administrative agency of 

competent jurisdiction determines that this Agreement violates any 

such statutes, rules or regulations, that the Parties shall take all 

actions that are necessary to comply with, and to conform this 

Agreement to, those statutes, rules or regulations. 
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 7.  Warranty of Non-Exclusion. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that 

the Party, its officers, directors and employees: 

7.1 are not currently excluded, debarred or otherwise ineligible to 

participate in federal health care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. 

132a-7b(f) (the “federal healthcare programs”);  

7.2  have not been convicted of a criminal offense related to the 

provision of healthcare items or services and have not yet been 

excluded, debarred or otherwise declared ineligible to participate 

in the federal healthcare programs;  

7.3 are not, to the best of its knowledge, under investigation or 

otherwise aware of any circumstances which may result in the 

Party or any such individual being excluded from participation in 

the federal healthcare programs;  

7.4 have not been and, during the term of this Agreement, will not be, 

convicted of, or plead guilty or no contest to, any crime of 

violence, any crime against persons, or any sex crime or offense 

that would bar an individual from being employed in a position 

that involves “regular contact with or control over Indian children” 

under the terms of the Indian Child Protection and Family 

Violence Prevention Act, 25 U.S.C. § 3207; and 

7.5 are not disqualified under the State of Alaska Barrier Crimes Act, 

AS 47.05, and the associated regulations, 12 AAC 10.900 et seq. 

 

 8. Dispute Resolution. The Parties agree to enter into good faith negotiations to 

resolve any disputes that arise out of or relate to this agreement.  If a dispute cannot be settled 

through negotiation, the Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by non-binding 

mediation with a mutually agreed upon mediator as a condition precedent before resorting to 

litigation.   

 9. Termination. This Agreement 

9.1 shall terminate at the end of the Term; and 
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9.2 may be terminated before the end of the Term by either Party: 

9.2.1 at-will, and with or without cause, upon 90 day’s 

written notice to the other Party; 

9.2.1 for cause immediately upon delivery of written 

notice to the other Party. 

 

 10. Renewal, Modification and Amendment.  This Agreement may be renewed, modified 

or amended only by the written agreement of the Parties. 

 

 11.  Non-Waiver.  No delay or failure to exercise any right under this Agreement shall 

constitute waiver of that or any other right. 

 

 12.  Entire Agreement.  The Parties agree that: 

12.1  this Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, 

and this Agreement supersedes any prior agreement, written or 

oral, between them, on the subjects addressed in this Agreement; 

and 

12.2  both Parties have had ample opportunity to review the terms of this 

Agreement and consult with legal counsel if so desired. 
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13.  Choice of Law.  The Parties agree that: 

13.1 this Agreement is governed by and will be construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Alaska and the United States of 

America;  

13.2 jurisdiction and venue for any disputes arising out of or relating to 

this Agreement not otherwise resolved by the Parties shall be in the 

Superior Court for the State of Alaska, at Juneau. 

 

 14.       Part Found Invalid.  If any part of this Agreement is held invalid, then that 

provision shall be interpreted to the fullest extent possible so as to be valid and effective, and the 

remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

 15.  Indemnification. Each Party (the indemnitor) shall indemnify, defend, and 

hold harmless the other Party (the indemnitee) from any and all liability, action, claim, suit, loss, 

property damage, or personal injury of whatever kind relating to or arising out of the 

performance or nonperformance by the indemnitor party of its obligations under this Agreement, 

or the performance or nonperformance of such obligations by the indemnitor’s Board, officers, 

employees, agents, or subcontractors, whether such performance or nonperformance is negligent 

or intentional; provided, however, that the indemnitor shall not be required to indemnify, defend, 

or hold harmless the indemnitee for the indemnitee’s negligent or intentional act, or the negligent 

or intentional act of the indemnitee’s Board, officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, 

relating to or arising out of the performance or nonperformance of the indemnitee’s obligations 

under this agreement. Each Party shall obtain insurance providing coverage for its obligations 

under this paragraph, to the extent that such insurance is reasonably available. 

 

 16.  Notices. All notices permitted or required by this Agreement shall be deemed 

given when in writing and delivered personally or deposited in the United States mail, postage 

prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or 

such other address as the party may designate in writing. A copy of all notices shall be sent by 

electronic mail on the date the notice is mailed: 
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To Hospital: CEO 
  Bartlett Regional Hospital 
  3260 Hospital Drive 
  Juneau, Alaska 99801  
  
 
Copied to: City Attorney 

City and Borough of Juneau 
155 South Seward Street 

  Juneau, Alaska 99801 
  
 
To Clinic: Dahl Memorial Clinic 

P.O. Box 537 
Skagway, Alaska 99840 

  
 
Copied to: Municipality of Skagway 

P.O. Box 415 
Skagway, Alaska 99840 

  
 15.  Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Agreement except with the prior 

written consent of the other Party. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 

benefit of the Parties and their successors and assigns. 

 

 16.  Miscellaneous. 

16.1 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall be an original, and all of which shall together constitute one 

Agreement. 

16.3  Severance. Should any part of this Agreement be invalid or 

unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the 

validity and enforceability of the remaining portions. 

16.4  Authority. Each individual signing this Agreement warrants that such 

execution has been duly authorized by the Party for which he or she is 

signing and that the execution and performance of this Agreement by each 

Party has been duly authorized by all applicable laws and regulations and 

all necessary governmental action, and that this Agreement constitutes the 
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valid and enforceable obligation of each Party in accordance with its 

terms. 

16.5 Amendment. This Agreement may not be modified except in a writing 

executed by both Parties. 

 

IN WITNESS, the Parties’ authorized representatives have executed this Agreement below, 

effective the date first above written. 

Municipality of Skagway/Dahl Memorial Clinic 

_____________________________ 

Mark Schaefer 
Mayor 
 

Bartlett Regional Hospital 

______________________________ 

Jeff Egbert 
Chief Executive Officer (interim) 
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A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

Finance Committee 1-16-2014 
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Bartlett Regional flospital
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.orq

December 19,2013
Finance Committee meeting

Minutes

Attendance: Lauree Morton, Mary Borthwick, Bob Reynolds, Linda
Gardner. MilaThomas, Mark Johnson (future board member) Jeff

Cosgrove, Marise Knock, Ken Brough and Toni

Ms. Morton, acting as chair, welcomed Mr.
appointed by the City Assembly.

The November financials and dashboards reviewed.

Capital Budget items - This is FYl. there
forward at this time, however the Comm
agenda item. Mr. Brough said he
put together for next year's capital

The Committee al EHR
in the
.  Wea the Medicare Cost Report. We

$3.7 million dollars from the
ends loss that we won't easily be able to

the that are demonstration projects. Three
looking at this as well as our federal delegation.

to in the upcoming year. We also received an
the paperwork to become a preferred provider with
are not part of different unions, retirees and exempt

BRH as a preferred provider as the State switches

crtY/BoRoucH oF rur{tAu

Board member

capital bring
asked to keep this a standing

leaders to get a schedule

we have met the criteria
of $900,"(ffi, it's just a matter of timeto receive those

when we will receive
need to

of them
This is
update that
AETNA for State
service. They will
to that provider Jan

Meeting adjourned. 5:50 p.m.

Baftlett Regional Hospital - A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund

f 
,rr lst",tr ( ,\t,t iAr i l  rs
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3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Finance Committee 
January 16, 2014 

Minutes 
 

Attendance: Alex Malter, MD; Linda Thomas; Lauree Morton (by phone); Mary 
Borthwick,  

Also  in attendance: Jeff Egbert, Interim CEO; Billy Gardner, CNO; Mila Cosgrove, HR; 
Max Mertz, Elgee, Rehfeld and Mertz; Sara Griffith, Elgee, Rehfeld and Mertz; Cynthia 
Brandt, Interim CFO; Jim Strader, Community Relations; Marise Knock, Controller; and 
Toni Petrie, Executive Assistant 

Dr. Malter called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

ACTION ITEM: 

Approval of the minutes – Ms. Thomas made a motion to approve the minutes and 
they were approved as presented.  

Max Mertz introduced Sara Griffith. She is with his firm, Elgee, Rehfeld and Mertz.  Ms. 
Griffith has been working on Bartlett’s audits for about 8 years. Mr. Mertz gave the 
committee an update on the CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Finance Report). This report 
has been uploaded to Egnyte for the Board to review.  

The December financial statements were reviewed. The layout has been significantly 
revised by Ms. Brandt and the committee was very pleased to see the changes.  They 
felt it was much easier to read and understand.  

Mr. Egbert updated the committee on progress with the ER call negotiations.  He has 
met with the General Surgeons and the Pediatricians so far. He is still working on setting 
up a meeting with the Orthopedic Surgeons.  

The recommended ranges for pay for the three groups are as follows;  

Pediatrics $500.00 a day for excess call.  

General Surgeons and Orthopedic Surgeons $1,000 a day for excess call. 

Mr. Egbert hopes to have the contracts ready for approval in February.  
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Marine Passenger Fees – We have completed the application for the request for 
funding. The amount requested this year is $273,618.  

Health care funding – Over the last 5 fiscal years, there has been significant 
differences between BRH employees and other CBJ employees in both the contributions 
to and uses of the CBJ Health Care insurance plan.  Some differences are to be 
expected, but Ms. Cosgrove hopes to better educate the employees at Bartlett to take 
advantage of the Health Yourself Rewards Program as well as other ways to help 
reduce visits to the hospital and doctors office.  

DSH (Disproportionate Share Hospital) payments – We received a contract from the 
state for FY14.  Due to the reduction in Federal DSH money, the State has proposed to 
pay us for 700 days this year vs. the 900 days they did last year. The contract is with 
CBJ Legal for review.  

Budget – Ms. Brandt said we are getting ready to work through the budget process. We 
need to develop a timeline that will work for the hospital then bring it to the Finance 
Committee for review. We are looking at getting a solid budget by the end of February.  

The committee asked Mr. Gardner if he could get the medevac numbers for 2013 to see 
how many could have been avoided based on the needs of the patient if any. 

BOARD COMMENTS: 

Ms. Borthwick said she had a concern from today’s letter to the editor regarding not 
being able to get estimates for procedures from Bartlett. She asked staff to follow-up and 
see if that was true and if it was, why that is. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:45 
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Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Monthly Financial Reporting Package 

Introduction to Financial Reporting Enhancements 
 

We have undertaken a project to revise and enhance our monthly financial reporting package and to the streamline the monthly 
closing process.  Why?   By building upon the information we already collect and report, and creating it sooner, we provide ourselves 
with an opportunity to respond more quickly to developing trends.  Furthermore, by utilizing the reporting and statistical capture 
capabilities of Meditech, we are able to redeploy accounting and finance resources from data entry to information analysis – 
thereby positioning ourselves to “know the numbers” and be able to communicate more effectively throughout the organization 
and to the Board as to our financial status. 
 
We are implementing the redesign in a phased approach.  In this package, you will find basic financial statements that have been 
generated directly from Meditech while other reports (like the dashboard and cash summary) are still in EXCEL.  Certainly a work in 
process, but we have already enjoyed the benefits of using the system reports.  In addition to the reports you’ll find enclosed, we 
have developed details reports, in the very same format, that allow us to drill down into the summary information for variance and 
other analysis. 
 
Though we will walk through the package during the financial presentation here are a few items of note to facilitate your review: 
 The Statement of Revenues and Expenses (Actual vs Budget) has been organized so that we can discuss monthly and year to 

date results from the same page – with comparisons to YTD budget and prior year. 
 Line numbers have been added to facilitate discussion 
 Bad Debt Expense has been moved from “Operating Expenses” to “Deductions from Revenue” to be consistent with industry 

reporting guidelines.   
 “Prior Year Settlements” has been added as a line within “Deductions from Revenue.”  In the future, this line will show the 

total amounts received for Medicare and Medicaid settlements so that, at a glance, we can know the impact of prior year 
amounts in current year operations.  Currently those amounts are included in Contractual Adjustments.  By the next report, 
we will have those separately identified. 

 Negative variances from budget (for either revenue or expenses) are denoted with parenthesis 
 
Eventually, most all of the package (financial information, statistics, and calculations for key performance indicators) will all be 
generated directly from Meditech and we anticipate that to be concluded over the next 2 closing cycles.  We are excited about the 
enhancements and hope you are as well.  We would welcome your feedback and comments.   
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Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Monthly Financial Reporting Package 

Narrative 
 

Excess of revenues over expenses for the month of December, 2013 was $631,782 which was $375,658 better than the budget of 
$256,124.  December’s performance brings the year to date actual to $4,248,183 which exceeds the budget of $1,793,444 by 
$2,454,739 or 137%. 
 
Total patient revenue for the month was $481,205 less than budget but approximates budget on a year to date basis.  We continue 
to see volumes less than budgeted, particularly in the inpatient area and with notable decreases in the Mental Health unit.   
 
Contractual adjustments in December were better than budget by 4.4% which tracks with the 4.6% negative revenue variance.  We 
did see significant charity write‐offs during the month which contributed to a negative variance of $181,642.  For the year, charity is 
$422,677 or 37.2% higher than budget.  Conversely, we are seeing a positive year to date variance in bad debt ‐ $1,061,690 or 22%.  
It appears that there are some classification changes that took place after the FY14 budget was finalized and those changes are 
contributing somewhat to the inverse variances in charity and bad debt.  We will be reviewing contractual adjustments along with 
charity and bad debt as part of our financial reporting enhancement project. 
 
Other Operating Revenue is $897,336 over budget for the month due to the receipt of an Electronic Health Record incentive of 
$898,281. This payment was the result of Stage 1 Meaningful Use Attestation. 
 
Total Expenses approximate budget for the month and are 1.0% or $423,053 better than budget for the year.  Notable negative 
variances were: 
 Salaries were 5.8% or $158,352 more than budget during the month and were driven by variances in Clinic Office, Health 

Information Management and Executive.  The Health Information Management negative salary variance is partially offset by 
a positive variance in professional fees since employees were hired rather than contracted as was anticipated in the budget. 

 Utilities are over budget by $42,525.  Of that amount, $33,444 relates to Fuel Oil which appears to be a budget timing issue 
since Fuel Oil is 10% or $52,098 under budget for the year. 

 Depreciation is over budget $22,743 as the FY14 budget did not include additional depreciation for projects placed in service 
at or soon after the end of FY13. 

 Interest expense is $59,021 over budget as the FY14 interest expense related to the Bond Defeasance was not known in time 
for inclusion in the budget.  This monthly variance will continue through June, 2014. 

 Other expenses for the month are $38,294 over budget which includes a negative variance in “Reimbursable Costs.”  The 
accounting for these costs is under review.      

 
Operating cash was $20,510,968 as of December 31, 2013 and Days Cash on Hand was 168.  Net A/R Days was 80. 
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Actual Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year  Budget
Inpatient:Patient Days
Patient Days ‐ Med/Surg 260 285 332 1,791 1,857 2,144
Patient Days ‐ Critial Care Unit 65 71 82 352 474 504
Avg. Daily Census ‐ Acute 10.48 11.48 13.35 11.65 12.67 14.39
Patient Days ‐ Obstetrics 72 68 97 521 398 598
Patient Days ‐ Nursery 54 52 60 199 348 374
Births 23 35 30 197 159 185
Patient Days ‐ Mental Health Unit 106 178 268 1,278 1,576 1,610
Avg. Daily Census ‐ MHU 3.42 5.74 8.65 6.95 8.57 8.75

Inpatient:Admissions
Med/Surg 57 67 77 408 473 463
Critial Care Unit 35 34 41 192 234 245
Obstetrics 24 32 42 211 203 248
Nursery 23 25 34 199 188 207
Mental Health Unit 24 29 35 180 189 210

Surgery:
Inpatient Surgery Cases 54 56 53 335 360 343
Same Day Surgery Cases 214 239 243 1,199 1,306 1,319
Total Surgery Cases 268 295 296 1,534 1,666 1,662
Total Surgery Minutes 17,475 19,238 19,666 101,971 113,709 113,551

Outpatient:
Total Outpatient Visits (Hospital)
Emergency Department Visits 1,139 1,136 1,175      7,148 7,402 7,318      
Cardiac Rehab Visits 9 22 29            204 196 199          
Lab Tests 6,771 6,509 8,463      47,609 47,337 54,072    
Radiology Procedures 1,991 2,016 2,237      12,708 13,547 14,021    
Sleep Studies 10 20 26            98 132 146          

Rain Forest Recovery:
Patient Days ‐ RRC 389 293 380          2,363 2,237 2,311      
Avg. Daily Census ‐ RRC 12.55 9.45 12.26 12.84 12.16 12.56
Outpatient visits 312 468 N/A 2,048 2,955 N/A

Physician Clinics:
Specialty Clinic Visits 214 239 557          1,199 1,306 3,405      

Other Operating Indicators:
Dietary Meals Served 20,073 15,197 20,553    126,239 117,630 121,995  
Laundry Pounds (Per 100) 288.13 295.84 316.67 1,851.50 1,892.80 1,900.00

Financial Indicators:
Revenue Per Adjusted Patient Day 7,684.87 5,718.87 5,640.59 6,680.60 5,529.83 5,559.44
Contractual Allowance % 26.97% 31.71% 26.81% 26.52% 27.21% 27.05%
Bad Debt & Charity Care % 10.67% 10.82% 9.14% 8.24% 8.72% 9.22%
Wages as a % of Net Revenue 36.38% 34.96% 35.48% 35.71% 39.83% 35.48%
Staff Hours Per Adjusted Patient Day 56.50 40.06 38.73 46.45 40.13 37.97
Overtime/Premium % of Productive 5.41% 2.35% 3.50% 5.01% 3.57% 3.50%
Days Cash on Hand 168 125 120 168 125 120
Days in Net Receivables 80 88 55 80 88 55

Facility Utilization:
CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

Bartlett Regional Hospital
Dashboard Report for December 2013

1
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A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

2013 Audit – Elgee, Rehfeld & Mertz 
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CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Major Enterprise Funds 
 
BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL 
 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 

  

 
 
 

2013 2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES
   Charges for services $  84,128,171  83,356,927  79,821,996
   Sales  122,036  40,487  24,025
   Rentals  -  87,494  96,711
         Total operating revenues  84,250,207  83,484,908  79,942,732

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Salaries and fringe benefits  53,699,266  52,597,347  49,283,490
   Commodities and services  23,268,178  25,273,101  24,683,661
   Depreciation  7,001,295  7,145,290  6,552,177
         Total operating expenses  83,968,739  85,015,738  80,519,328
    
         Operating income (loss)  281,468  (1,530,830)  (576,596)

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
   Investment and interest income  175,648  332,350  537,247
   State sources  5,162,399  4,292,099  3,166,050
   Federal grants  54,001  -  - 
   Bond issuance costs  (168,050)  -  - 
   Interest expense  (1,106,721)  (1,265,428)  (1,285,113)
   Gain on disposal of capital assets  2,543  (35,971)  - 
         Net nonoperating income (expenses)  4,119,820  3,323,050  2,418,184

         Net income before contributions and transfers  4,401,288  1,792,220  1,841,588

Capital contributions  134,658  471,910  89,002
Transfers in  1,123,000  1,152,400  1,152,600
         Change in net position  5,658,946  3,416,530  3,083,190

Total net position - beginning, as restated  93,871,227  90,454,697  87,371,507

Total net position - ending $  99,530,173  93,871,227  90,454,697
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CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 

Major Enterprise Funds 
 

BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL 
 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Budget and Actual 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 

 -  

 
 

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
   Charges for services $  83,316,500  83,316,500  84,128,171  811,671
   Sales  -  -  122,036  122,036
   Rentals  81,500  81,500  -  (81,500)
         Total operating revenues  83,398,000  83,398,000  84,250,207  852,207

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Salaries and fringe benefits  50,910,400  50,910,400  53,699,266  (2,788,866)
   Commodities and services  25,516,300  25,608,200  23,274,678  2,333,522
   Capital outlay  3,967,700  5,117,700  2,126,092  2,991,608
   Debt principal  620,000  620,000  620,000  - 
         Total operating expenses  81,014,400  82,256,300  79,720,036  2,536,264

         Operating income (loss)  2,383,600  1,141,700  4,530,171  3,388,471

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
   Investment and interest income  390,400  390,400  175,648  (214,752)
   State sources  -  -  5,162,399  5,162,399
   Federal grants  -  -  54,001  54,001
   Bond issuance costs  (16,700)  (16,700)  (168,050)  (151,350)
   Interest expense  (1,235,000)  (1,235,000)  (1,106,721)  128,279
   Gain on disposal of capital assets  -  -  2,543  2,543
         Net nonoperating income (expenses)  (861,300)  (861,300)  4,119,820  4,981,120

         Net Income before other sources  1,522,300  280,400  8,649,991  8,369,591
 

OTHER SOURCES
   Transfers from:
      Special Revenue Funds:
         Sales Tax  845,000  845,000  845,000  - 
         Tobacco Excise Tax  278,000  278,000  278,000  - 
         Total other sources  1,123,000  1,123,000  1,123,000  - 

            Change in net position (Non-GAAP) $  2,645,300  1,403,400  9,772,991  8,369,591

Encumbrance adjustment  6,500
Capitalization of assets  2,126,092
Depreciation expense  (7,001,295)
Principal payments on loans  620,000
Capital contributions  134,658
   Change in net position $  5,658,946

 
 
This schedule is prepared on a budgetary basis for the operating accounts of the proprietary fund and as such does not present the results of 
operations on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles, but is presented for supplemental information.
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 

Statement of Net Position 
 

June 30, 2013 
with comparative total amounts for 2012 and 2011 

 

-  

 
Business-type Activites

Juneau Bartlett Areawide Areawide
International Regional Water Wastewater Boat

Airport Hospital Utility Utility Harbors
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current assets:
   Equity in central treasury $  2,064,376  26,113,833  2,125,632  5,105,919  3,466,374
   Receivables, net of allowance
      for doubtful accounts:
        Accounts  680,744   21,957,160   499,123  1,330,936  543,407
        Other  -  -  -  -  - 
   Inventories  548,205  1,560,684  467,958  1,676,263  - 
   Prepaid items  -  530,015  -  -  - 
         Total current assets  3,293,325  50,161,692  3,092,713  8,113,118  4,009,781

Non-current assets:
   Restricted assets:
      Equity in central treasury  -  5,490,768  3,941,921  8,828,046  9,960,681
      Receivables:
         State of Alaska  189,493  -  -  435,104  985,647
         Federal government  6,813,285  -  -  -  - 
         Special assessments  -  -  7,840  1,108,240  - 
   Capital assets:
      Land  13,363,761  348,551  221,038  850,562  2,676,768
      Buildings and improvements  64,289,330  104,580,601  95,784,429  83,266,172  21,684,687
      Machinery, equipment and fixtures  6,607,077  38,304,676  506,917  4,854,800  1,400,311
      Construction work in progress  103,461,518  2,826,314  4,707,231  20,355,665  42,397,974
         Less accumulated depreciation  (54,940,101)  (69,231,030)  (52,650,753)  (51,156,918)  (13,886,398)
         Total capital assets (net
            of accumulated depreciation)  132,781,585  76,829,112  48,568,862  58,170,281  54,273,342
                Total noncurrent assets  139,784,363  82,319,880  52,518,623  68,541,671  65,219,670

Deferred outflows of resources  -  1,182,347  -  -  - 

                 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources$  143,077,688  133,663,919  55,611,336  76,654,789  69,229,451
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Enterprise  Funds

 
Waste Totals  Internal Service Funds

Dock Management 2013 2012 2011  2013 2012 2011

 2,887,295  1,999,103  43,762,532  34,301,772  34,653,372  17,862,591  17,029,391  18,129,738

 169,717  177,425  25,358,512  24,542,309  23,726,354  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  749  1,771  401,409
 -  -  4,253,110  4,468,769  4,688,614  229,720  227,502  228,195
 -  -  530,015  688,015  532,241  97,579  82,820  105,919

 3,057,012  2,176,528  73,904,169  64,000,865  63,600,581  18,190,639  17,341,484  18,865,261

 27,545,429  -  55,766,845  50,339,706  38,113,928  -  -  - 

 882,105  -  2,492,349  4,258,973  4,986,386  -  -  - 
 -  -  6,813,285  3,280,025  8,211,903  -  -  - 
 -  -  1,116,080  1,229,970  1,020,813  -  -  - 

 564,819  -  18,025,499  18,056,854  18,056,854  -  -  - 
 22,799,381  300,000  392,704,600  385,645,117  380,788,863  -  14,225  14,225

 435,004  91,925  52,200,710  50,738,766  49,264,682  23,726,827  23,629,727  21,416,666
 24,288,072  -  198,036,774  161,232,908  133,512,153  -  2,995  717,924

 (13,434,791)  (206,145)  (255,506,136)  (239,284,226)  (226,176,281)  (14,134,913)  (13,736,493)  (13,140,410)

 34,652,485  185,780  405,461,447  376,389,419  355,446,271  9,591,914  9,910,454  9,008,405
 63,080,019  185,780  471,650,006  435,498,093  407,779,301  9,591,914  9,910,454  9,008,405

 -  -  1,182,347  -  -  -  -  - 

 66,137,031  2,362,308  546,736,522  499,498,958  471,379,882  27,782,553  27,251,938  27,873,666
   

(Continued)  
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 

Statement of Net Position, continued 
 

June 30, 2013 
with comparative total amounts for 2012 and 2011 

 

- 

 
Business-type Activities

Juneau Bartlett Areawide Areawide
International Regional Water Wastewater Boat

Airport Hospital Utility Utility Harbors
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
   Accounts payable $  232,249  2,865,138  54,938  -  86,538
   Contracts payable  -  -  -  355,933  - 
   Accrued salaries, payroll taxes
      and withholdings payable  80,474  866,842  51,538  149,745  42,496
   Accrued annual leave and compensation time  79,829  1,421,964  65,746  201,665  42,617
   Accrued interest and other liabilities  28,764  285,562  12,002  39,310  150,268
   Unearned revenues  13,490  997,806  -  -  740,009
   State of Alaska extension loans payable  -  -  67,487  497,672  - 
   Revenue bonds payable  -  1,088,900  81,250  43,750  285,000
      Total current liabilities  434,806  7,526,212  332,961  1,288,075  1,346,928

Non-current liabilities:
   Restricted liabilities:
      Interfund payable to other funds  3,091,762  -  -  -  - 
      Accounts and contracts payable  2,051,507  1,242  10,442  16,471  - 
      Unearned revenues  433,618  -  7,840  -  - 
   Accrued annual leave and compensation time  101,972  1,301,613  83,984  257,605  54,437
   Long-term contracts payable  -  -  -  -  - 
   State of Alaska extension loans payable  -  -  674,872  7,036,036  - 
   Revenue bonds payable  -  25,304,679  270,307  145,550  9,380,434
            Total non-current liabilities  5,678,859  26,607,534  1,047,445  7,455,662  9,434,871

            Total liabilities  6,113,665  34,133,746  1,380,406  8,743,737  10,781,799

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets  132,937,922  50,435,533  47,474,946  50,447,273  49,049,064
Restricted:
   Capital projects  1,256,064  5,489,526  3,931,479  10,354,919  6,505,172
Unrestricted  2,770,037  43,605,114  2,824,505  7,108,860  2,893,416

       Total net position $  136,964,023  99,530,173  54,230,930  67,911,052  58,447,652

       Adjustments to reflect the consolidation of internal
          service fund activities related to enterprise funds
Net position of business-type activities  

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  
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Enterprise Funds

Waste Totals Internal Service Funds
Dock Management 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

 31,947  56,532  3,327,342  5,096,591  2,539,040  225,504  182,035  559,297
 -  -  355,933  -  -  60,440  57,869  55,408

 46,191  4,219  1,241,505  1,133,709  2,816,864  32,402  39,112  72,557
 31,454  1,946  1,845,221  2,022,484  1,967,278  35,566  48,144  44,862

 -  -  515,906  260,925  269,185  5,182,700  4,649,000  4,228,263
 -  -  1,751,305  1,016,017  4,900,519  -  -  - 
 -  -  565,159  524,401  493,650  -  238,572  401,409
 -  -  1,498,900  1,010,000  1,080,000  -  -  - 

 109,592  62,697  11,101,271  11,064,127  14,066,536  5,536,612  5,214,732  5,361,796

 -  -  3,091,762  3,796,188  9,139,199  -  -  - 
 69,984  -  2,149,646  3,237,125  3,120,448  -  -  - 

 5,157,002  -  5,598,460  3,231,809  527,967  -  -  - 
 40,180  2,485  1,842,276  1,880,991  1,943,618  45,431  61,497  57,306

 -  -  -  -  -  31,219  91,659  149,528
 -  -  7,710,908  7,225,281  7,704,691  -  -  - 
 -  -  35,100,970  35,159,688  36,212,773  -  -  - 

 5,267,166  2,485  55,494,022  54,531,082  58,648,696  76,650  153,156  206,834

 5,376,758  65,182  66,595,293  65,595,209  72,715,232  5,613,262  5,367,888  5,568,630

 34,652,485  185,780  365,183,003  336,446,792  314,162,017  9,500,255  9,760,926  8,803,469

 23,200,548  -  50,737,708  47,008,914  39,127,405  -  -  - 
 2,907,240  2,111,346  64,220,518  50,448,043  45,375,228  12,669,036  12,123,124  13,501,567

 60,760,273  2,297,126  480,141,229  433,903,749  398,664,650  22,169,291  21,884,050  22,305,036

 6,467,780  6,427,332  6,904,286
$  486,609,009  440,331,081  405,568,936
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 
with comparative total amounts for 2012 and 2011 

 

- 

Business-type Activities
Juneau Bartlett Areawide Areawide

International Regional Water Wastewater Boat
Airport Hospital Utility Utility Harbors

OPERATING REVENUES
   Charges for services:
      Unpledged $  2,517,789  -  -  -  - 
      Pledged as security for revenue bonds  -  84,128,171  3,842,349  9,343,212  2,600,418
   Licenses, permits and fees  399,976  -  -  -  - 
   Sales  37,359  122,036  -  -  - 
   Fines and forfeitures  956  -  -  -  11,563
   Rentals  1,948,327  -  -  -  561,291
   Donations and contributions  -  -  -  -  - 
   Other  24,099  -  427,288  181,595  - 
         Total operating revenues  4,928,506  84,250,207  4,269,637  9,524,807  3,173,272

OPERATING EXPENSES
   Salaries and fringe benefits  2,433,011  53,699,266  1,716,470  4,146,657  1,429,722
  Commodities and services  3,230,312  23,268,178  1,301,517  4,051,857  1,068,456
   Depreciation  2,814,149  7,001,295  2,732,498  2,739,718  968,761
         Total operating expenses  8,477,472  83,968,739  5,750,485  10,938,232  3,466,939

         Operating income (loss)  (3,548,966)  281,468  (1,480,848)  (1,413,425)  (293,667)

NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
   Investment and interest income  14,547  175,648  24,852  75,845  44,255
   Federal sources  108,067  54,001  -  -  - 
   State sources  309,936  5,162,399  154,220  316,666  191,043
   Amortization of bond issuance costs  -  (168,050)  (358)  (192)  - 
   Interest expense  -  (1,106,721)  (29,250)  (73,405)  (449,984)
   Gain (loss) on disposal of assets  -  2,543  (27,867)  8,472  - 
         Net nonoperating income (expenses)  432,550  4,119,820  121,597  327,386  (214,686)
         Income (loss) before
            contributions and transfers  (3,116,416)  4,401,288  (1,359,251)  (1,086,039)  (508,353)

Capital contributions  28,206,785  134,658  111,531  271,384  7,392,466
Transfers from other funds  2,380,000  1,123,000  -  -  500,000
Transfers to other funds  -  -  -  (1,200)  - 
         Change in net position  27,470,369  5,658,946  (1,247,720)  (815,855)  7,384,113

Total net position - beginning, as restated  109,493,654  93,871,227  55,478,650  68,726,907  51,063,539

Total net position - ending $  136,964,023  99,530,173  54,230,930  67,911,052  58,447,652

Adjustments to reflect the consolidation of internal
       service fund activities related to enterprise funds
Change in net position of business-type activities (pages 16 and 17)

 
The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Enterprise Funds

Waste Totals  Internal Service Funds
Dock Management 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

 -  1,094,912  3,612,701  3,241,594  3,203,007  22,938,419  23,865,740  23,031,428
 1,095,558  -  101,009,708  100,406,116  95,265,115  -  -  - 

 522,337  5,000  927,313  882,288  762,896  -  -  - 
 -  -  159,395  76,007  55,198  -  -  - 
 -  -  12,519  8,835  19,551  -  -  - 

 582  -  2,510,200  2,576,118  2,372,194  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  5,500  -  -  - 
 -  -  632,982  605,704  456,042  -  -  - 

 1,618,477  1,099,912  108,864,818  107,796,662  102,139,503  22,938,419  23,865,740  23,031,428

 770,850  159,446  64,355,422  63,223,436  59,870,715  1,209,479  1,266,221  1,265,644
 473,518  604,606  33,998,444  35,525,408  34,359,693  20,576,458  21,998,870  17,172,913

 1,022,602  16,547  17,295,570  17,402,197  16,888,829  1,543,733  1,485,088  1,612,506
 2,266,970  780,599  115,649,436  116,151,041  111,119,237  23,329,670  24,750,179  20,051,063

 (648,493)  319,313  (6,784,618)  (8,354,379)  (8,979,734)  (391,251)  (884,439)  2,980,365

 29,919  8,697  373,763  776,987  988,606  21,728  49,681  76,809
 -  -  162,068  135,031  139,967  -  -  - 

 81,591  13,274  6,229,129  5,561,495  4,184,552  342,915  523,573  309,515
 -  -  (168,600)  (550)  (550)  -  -  - 
 -  -  (1,659,360)  (1,843,951)  (1,846,916)  (5,595)  (8,056)  (11,225)
 -  (21,000)  (37,852)  (150,504)  -  142,444  (101,745)  - 

 111,510  971  4,899,148  4,478,508  3,465,659  501,492  463,453  375,099

 (536,983)  320,284  (1,885,470)  (3,875,871)  (5,514,075)  110,241  (420,986)  3,355,464

 3,945,026  -  40,061,850  26,507,970  28,261,719  -  -  - 
 4,559,300  -  8,562,300  12,609,400  8,718,100  175,000  -  120,151
 (500,000)  -  (501,200)  (2,400)  (404,000)  -  -  (125,000)

 7,467,343  320,284  46,237,480  35,239,099  31,061,744  285,241  (420,986)  3,350,615

 53,292,930  1,976,842  21,884,050  22,305,036  18,954,421

 60,760,273  2,297,126  22,169,291  21,884,050  22,305,036

 (11,789)  (476,954)  1,526,577
$  46,225,691  34,762,145  32,588,321
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 
with comparative total amounts for 2012 and 2011 
 

- 

 
Business-type Activities

Juneau Bartlett Areawide Areawide
International Regional Water Wastewater Boat

Airport Hospital Utility Utility Harbors

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash flows from operating activities:
   Cash receipts from customers $  4,727,956  84,160,575  4,302,760  9,553,280  3,345,284
   Payments to suppliers for goods and services  (2,738,473)  (23,420,579)  (944,428)  (3,091,015)  (785,425)
   Payments to employees for services  (2,432,916)  (53,744,692)  (1,732,389)  (4,168,042)  (1,465,432)
   Payments for interfund exchange transactions  (469,980)  (657,626)  (445,185)  (844,796)  (272,277)
      Net cash provided (used) by operating activities  (913,413)  6,337,678  1,180,758  1,449,427  822,150

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
   Transfers to other funds  -  -  -  (1,200)  - 
   Transfers from other funds  2,380,000  1,123,000  -  -  500,000
   Cash from federal sources  108,067  54,001  -  -  - 
   Cash from state sources  309,936  5,162,399  154,220  316,666  191,043
      Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  2,798,003  6,339,400  154,220  315,466  691,043

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
   Cash received from long-term loan  -  -  -  -  - 
   Cash received on disposal of assets  -  2,543  -  8,472  - 
   Cash received from capital contribution - Federal
      and State capital grants  21,646,245  -  34,118  1,737,597  6,414,815
   Cash received from capital contribution  2,768,985  134,658  110,411  386,394  804,782
   Cash paid for acquisition and
      construction of capital assets  (26,661,408)  (3,342,217)  (938,578)  (2,260,712)  (9,495,343)
   Cash paid for debt service fee  -  -  (358)  (192)  - 
   Principal paid on revenue bond maturities  -  (335,563)  (78,000)  (42,000)  (296,161)
   Principal paid on long-term loans and contracts  -  -  (67,487)  593,872  - 
   Interest paid on bonds and contracts  -  (1,274,771)  (31,506)  (77,624)  (449,984)
      Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
         financing activities  (2,246,178)  (4,815,350)  (971,400)  345,807  (3,021,891)

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Earnings from invested proceeds  14,547  175,648  24,852  75,845  44,255
      Net cash provided by investing activities  14,547  175,648  24,852  75,845  44,255

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (347,041)  8,037,376  388,430  2,186,545  (1,464,443)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  2,411,417  23,567,225  5,679,123  11,747,420  14,891,498

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  2,064,376  31,604,601  6,067,553  13,933,965  13,427,055
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Enterprise Funds  

Waste Totals Internal Service Funds
Dock Management 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

 3,984,574  1,076,125  111,150,554  117,341,512  110,178,402  22,700,869  23,701,132  23,432,837
 (335,573)  (600,097)  (31,915,590)  (39,631,680)  (35,483,045)  (20,016,266)  (21,931,603)  (17,379,200)
 (760,465)  (159,668)  (64,463,604)  (64,914,012)  (59,453,646)  (1,244,833)  (1,292,193)  (1,225,430)
 (131,467)  (40,164)  (2,861,495)  (10,164,955)  (9,726,972)  -  -  - 

 2,757,069  276,196  11,909,865  2,630,865  5,514,739  1,439,770  477,336  4,828,207

 (500,000)  -  (501,200)  (2,400)  (404,000)  -  -  - 
 4,559,300  -  8,562,300  12,609,400  8,718,100  175,000  -  - 

 -  -  162,068  135,031  139,967  -  -  1,634,048
 81,591  13,274  6,229,129  5,561,495  4,184,552  342,915  523,573  309,515

 4,140,891  13,274  14,452,297  18,303,526  12,638,619  517,915  523,573  1,943,563

 -  -  -  -  2,421,779  -  -  - 
 -  -  11,015  (150,504)  -  149,161  -  - 

 4,371,099  -  34,203,874  24,893,921  18,783,767  -  -  - 
 -  -  4,205,230  7,064,359  3,410,779  -  -  - 

 (5,510,113)  -  (48,208,371)  (38,228,598)  (45,193,521)  (1,231,910)  (2,087,473)  (1,673,841)
 -  -  (550)  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  (751,724)  (1,123,085)  (1,045,000)  -  -  - 
 -  -  526,385  (448,659)  (483,837)  (57,869)  (55,408)  (112,806)
 -  -  (1,833,885)  (1,844,634)  (1,890,921)  (5,595)  (8,056)  (11,225)

 (1,139,014)  -  (11,848,026)  (9,837,200)  (23,996,954)  (1,146,213)  (2,150,937)  (1,797,872)

 29,919  8,697  373,763  776,987  988,606  21,728  49,681  76,809
 29,919  8,697  373,763  776,987  988,606  21,728  49,681  76,809

 5,788,865  298,167  14,887,899  11,874,178  (4,854,990)  833,200  (1,100,347)  5,050,707

 24,643,859  1,700,936  84,641,478  72,767,300  77,622,290  17,029,391  18,129,738  13,079,031

 30,432,724  1,999,103  99,529,377  84,641,478  72,767,300  17,862,591  17,029,391  18,129,738

(Continued)
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 

Statement of Cash Flows, continued 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 
with comparative total amounts for 2012 and 2011 
 

- 

 
 

Business-type Activities
Juneau Bartlett Areawide Areawide

International Regional Water Wastewater Boat
Airport Hospital Utility Utility Harbors

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
  provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $  (3,548,966)  281,468  (1,480,848)  (1,413,425)  (293,667)

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to 
  net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
    Depreciation  2,814,149  7,001,295  2,732,498  2,739,718  968,761
   (Increase) decrease in assets:
      Accounts receivable  (151,102)  (975,395)  49,868  28,473  304,462
      Other receivables  -  -  -  -  - 
      Inventories  62,974  231,649  (39,682)  (39,282)  - 
      Prepaid expenses  -  158,000  -  -  - 
    Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
      Accounts payable  (22,705)  (1,485,238)  (46,264)  155,328  14,741
      Accrued salaries payable  2,209  102,298  (13,403)  27,646  (11,250)
      Accrued annual leave and compensation time  (2,114)  (147,724)  (2,516)  (49,031)  (24,460)
      Unearned revenues  (49,448)  885,763  (16,745)  -  (132,450)
      Accrued and other liabilities  (18,410)  285,562  (2,150)  -  (3,987)
        Total adjustments  2,635,553  6,056,210  2,661,606  2,862,852  1,115,817

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $  (913,413)  6,337,678  1,180,758  1,449,427  822,150
 (913,413)  6,337,678  1,180,758  1,449,427  822,150
 (913,413)  6,337,678  1,180,758  1,449,427  822,150

 -  -  - 
Noncash activities from investing, capital and related financing:
    Receivable from capital contribution -
       Federal and State grants $  (6,803,292)  -  (34,118)  (1,737,597)  172,869
    Receivable from capital contribution -
       Special Assessment  -  -  -  115,010  - 
 $  (6,803,292)  -  (34,118)  (1,622,587)  172,869

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  
 
 
.

Page 54 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

-  

 
 

Enterprise Funds

Waste Totals Internal Service Funds
Dock Management 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

 (648,493)  319,313  (6,784,618)  (8,354,379)  (8,979,734)  (391,251)  (884,439)  2,980,365

 1,022,602  16,547  17,295,570  17,402,197  16,888,829  1,543,733  1,485,088  1,612,506

 (48,722)  (23,787)  (816,203)  (815,955)  (2,529,907)  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  442,436  1,022  (1,771)  - 
 -  -  215,659  219,845  (474,818)  (2,218)  693  (20,316)
 -  -  158,000  (155,774)  (25,339)  (14,759)  23,099  (6,550)

 6,478  (35,655)  (1,413,315)  (2,785,573)  (308,067)  43,469  (377,262)  107,860
 461  (165)  107,796  (1,683,155)  376,044  (6,710)  (33,445)  18,107

 9,924  (57)  (215,978)  (7,421)  41,025  (28,644)  7,473  22,107
 2,414,819  -  3,101,939  (1,180,660)  70,626  (238,572)  (162,837)  401,409

 -  -  261,015  (8,260)  13,644  533,700  420,737  (287,281)
 3,405,562  (43,117)  18,694,483  10,985,244  14,494,473  1,831,021  1,361,775  1,847,842

 2,757,069  276,196  11,909,865  2,630,865  5,514,739  1,439,770  477,336  4,828,207
 276,196  11,909,865  1,439,770
 276,196  11,909,865  1,439,770

 -  -  - 

 (426,073)  -  (8,828,211)  1,411,531  2,879,530  -  -  - 

 -  -  115,010  -  54,266  -  -  - 
 (426,073)  -  (8,713,201)  1,411,531  2,933,796  -  -  - 
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CITY and BOROUGH OF JUNEAU 
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  For the year ended June 30, 2013 
 

- 

Restricted Net Position 
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling 
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of 
other governments.   
 
Unrestricted Net Position 
This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net 
position.” 

 
E. REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES 
 
In the government-wide statement of activities, revenues and expenses are segregated by activity (governmental or business-
type), then further by function (e.g. administration, education, public transportation, etc).  Additionally, revenues are 
classified between program and general revenues.   
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 
ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and internal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Bartlett Regional Hospital’s charges for services as reported in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, include net patient service revenue, which is reported net of contractual allowances and discounts of $34,387,233, 
$27,968,500, and $27,341,019 for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively and bad debt expense of 
$9,222,925, $11,541,465 and $10,055,744 for June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011. 
 
Contributions of Capital 
Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets, tap-in fees 
to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system, or from grants or outside contributions of resources 
restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 
 
Reimbursements 
Reimbursement transactions occur when an expenditure is initially made from one fund but which is more appropriately 
applicable to another fund.  These items are recorded as expenditures and expenses in the fund initially charged.  An example 
of this type of transaction is when the Fire Service Area pays all fire protection costs, including those for the General Fund.  
The expenditures are transferred to the General Fund with a corresponding reduction of expenditures in the Fire Service Area 
Special Revenue Fund. 
 
Interfund Services Provided and Used 
Because governmental units operate with a number of funds, with each individual fund performing its specific functions, there 
are instances where funds are required to do business with each other.  This business can be categorized as either an interfund 
transaction or an interfund transfer. 
 
Interfund transactions are divided into two categories: exchange type activity and reimbursement transactions.  Exchange type 
activities are those transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved parties external 
to CBJ.  These types of transactions are accounted for as ordinary revenues, expenditures or expenses of the funds involved.  
An example of this type of transaction is when the Parks and Recreation Department buys water from the Water Department.  
This transaction is treated as an expenditure to the Parks and Recreation Department and as a revenue to the Water 
Department. 
 
Interfund transfers are transfers between funds or the component unit that are required when revenue is generated in one 
fund and expenditures are paid from another fund.  The majority of the transfers occur with respect to capital projects where 
General Fund and Special Revenue Fund monies are transferred to finance various capital projects. 
 
Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Comparative data/reclassifications 
Comparative total data for the prior two years have been presented for all statements, schedules and presentations except for 
budget to actual statements and partial fund type combining schedules.  This three-year presentation is consistent with prior 
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3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Planning Committee 
January 9, 2014 

Minutes 
 

Board member attendance: Nate Peimann, MD, Kristen Bomengen, Bob 
Storer, Lauree Morton, Mary Borthwick 

Staff attendance: Jeff Egbert, Interim CEO, Mila Cosgrove, HR, Toni Petrie, 
Executive Assistant 

Dr. Peimann called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m. 
 
Mr. Egbert introduced Keith Ryan, Managing Principal for Cornerstone Advisors.  
Mr. Ryan was retained by the Board to come do a presentation to people 
interested in learning more about the Electronic Medical Records “EMR” Systems 
processes and to help us come up with a plan in moving forward with our EMR. 
 
In wrapping up the discussion, Mr. Ryan suggested four recommendations in 
moving forward. They were to; 

1)      Establish a decision-making committee.  The membership should be broad, 
but manageable…he would strongly suggest no more than 12 

2)      Start with an analysis to understand if MEDITECH can or cannot align with 
the needs of the organization 

3)      If it is determined in the analysis that MEDITECH cannot align with the 
needs of Bartlett, then a selection process should be conducted beginning with a 
Total Cost of Ownership “TCO” analysis to understand likely vendors and / or 
solutions within your price point. 

4)      In parallel with the above efforts on the EMR decision, we need to begin to 
establish a strategic direction for the organization.  This will provide input into the 
needs definition to evaluate MEDITECH’s effectiveness in supporting Bartlett’s 
immediate and long-term needs (allowing the decision to be data driven rather 
than emotional).  This will also enable us to understand the IT organizational 
structure and governance changes which need to occur in order to create 
sustainability. 
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There were good questions from those who participated. 

The meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m.  

Page 59 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

Quality Council 1-15-2014 

Page 60 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



Board QA Committee 
Minutes 

Wednesday, January 15, 2014 1200-1330 
 
Called to order:   at 1200 by Mary Borthwick (BOD) 
Present: N. Davis (BOD) via teleconference, K. Bomengen (BOD), B. Gardner (CNO), B. Rogers (QM), T. Duncan (QM), M. Walker (EOC), L. Bishop 

(MedSurg), S. Parker (Risk Mgr.), K. Vermedal (QM), R. Free (DI), J. Strader (Public Relations), D. Bigge (QM), Dr. Hunter-Joerns 
Excused/Absent:  J. Egbert (CEO)  
Minutes:   December 6, 2013 minutes reviewed – approved as written. 

 

ITEM DISCUSSION / ACTIVITY ACTION / RECOMMENDATION RESPONSIBILTY 
NEW BUSINESS 

a. Quality Council Annual 
Work Plan 2014 

b. Draft Quality Council 
Charter 

Bethany explained the changes to the BoD QA and HQIC 
reporting structure. These two committees will become the 
Board Quality Council. The goal of this change is to better 
engage the Board, Sr. Leaders and staff in patient safety and 
quality at a more granular level.   This change is partially in 
response to data from the Culture of Safety survey taken by 
BRH employees last year that indicated that leadership did 
not have a connection with patient safety efforts or did not 
make them a priority.  This change will also help to make 
quality reporting more efficient and reduce duplication.  
Bethany briefly reviewed the reporting schedule and the 
Board Quality Council Charter draft.  
Mary and Nancy expressed their eager interest in knowing 
what departments are working on and excitement to 
recognize everyone’s efforts and hard work.  

Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
After reviewing the draft charter, please 
send comments, changes or updates to 
Bethany by February 3rd, in order to be 
included in the packet prior to the next 
council meeting.   

Committee 

OLD BUSINESS 
 None   

STANDING REPORTS 
Annual Planning 
i. UR/CM Plan 

 
ii. EOC Evaluations and Plan 

 
1. Utilities and Equipment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Tabled TBD 
 
Marc presented the evaluations for all the EOC areas: 
 
No changes to the utilities objectives or scope. 
All performance measure goals were met except the annual 
testing of 90 minute battery powered emergency lights; this 
measure will remain as a performance goal for 2014. 
There were minor editing changes made to the equipment 
objectives.  No changes to the scope.   
Performance measures were not met. 
These two measures will carry on for 2014.    

*Please contact Bethany, Marc or Kim for 
detailed plan or evaluation comments or 
questions.   Plans and evaluations can also 
be reviewed via Egnyte.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee 

 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 

907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 
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              2. Safety and Security  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

               3. Hazardous Materials 
 
 
 

 
4. Emergency Management 
 
 
5. Life Safety  

 
 
 
 
iii  Infection Control  

 
No changes to the Safety Management program objectives 
or scope. The updated Safety Management Plan was 
approved December 2013.   
Performance measures met; 1:1 sitters and policy review 
will carry on into 2014 goals.   
No changes to the Security Management program objectives 
or scope. 
All performance measures were met. 
 
Minor changes to the objectives; no changes to the scope.  
All measures met except disposal of un-used medication. 
This will be carried forward to 2014. Not a compliance 
concern, just ensuring best practice.   
 
ER management plan was not included in the packet due to 
its extensive size. No changes to objective or scope.   
 
Minor grammatical changes to the life safety objectives and 
scope. 
Measures met with exception to the code red evaluation 
survey.  We need to push survey responses in 2014.  
 
Kim reviewed the Infection Control Plan for 2013. Kim 
noted we didn’t meet the Hand Hygiene goal and it will 
continue into 2014 with new training.  Zero CLABIs in 
2013.  ZERO CAUTIs for 2013, significant goal met.  
Measures remain the same for 2014.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bethany will send out the 2013 
Evaluation for review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All plans are recommended for 
forwarding to the full Board for 
approval. 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
Quality Review of EEGs – Dr. 
Hunter-Joerns 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Content Discussion 

Dr. Hunter-Joerns is looking for a Board contact to assist her 
in the technical and professional review needs regarding 
EEG reading.  Kristen expressed this request isn’t 
appropriate for Board level review as the Board feels they 
need to allow hospital staff to manage operations, with the 
Board focusing on governance.  Kristen suggested that Dr. 
Hunter-Joerns work with Robyn when she needs assistance.  
Robyn and Dr. Hunter-Joerns to discuss.  Jeff will also 
review request and close the loop on any questions. 
 
Kristen inquired how the committee will handle public 
content versus confidential content in this new Council 
format.  This should be outlined in the charter. 

Robyn to work with Dr. Hunter-Joerns to 
address review needs, and follow up with 
Jeff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bethany to research how this is handled at 
other facilities and advise by next 
meeting. 

Robyn / Jeff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bethany Rogers 

ADJOURNMENT 
Next Meeting:  February 6, 2014 1200-1300 Submitted by:  Tamiko Duncan, QM 
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SCOPE: 
The Utility Systems Management Plan monitors and evaluates the utility systems in use at Bartlett 
Regional Hospital according to applicable laws and regulations. 
 
 
POLICY: 
A safe, comfortable patient care and treatment environment shall be provided by managing the 
risks associated with safe operation and the functional reliability of the hospital's utility systems. 
 
OBJECTIVES: 

A. The objectives of Bartlett Regional Hospital's Utility Systems Management Plan includes 
the following: 
A.1. To minimize the occurrence of unplanned utility systems failures or interruptions; 
A.2. To provide preventative maintenance of the utility systems ensuring reliability; 
A.3. To investigate all utility system problems, failures or user errors. 

 
RESPONSIBILITY: 
The Facilities Director is responsible for maintaining the Utility Systems Management Program. 
 
 
A. ASSESS AND MINIMIZE RISKS OF UTILITY FAILURES, REDUCE THE POTENTIAL FOR 

ORGANIZATIONAL-ACQUIRED ILLNESS AND ENSURE OPERATIONAL RELIABILITY OF 
SYSTEMS: 
A.1. The Utility Systems Management Program is designed to assure operational reliability, 

reduce the potential for organizational-acquired illness, assess risks, respond to failures 
and train users and operators of the utility systems components, thus promoting a safe, 
controlled and comfortable environment. 

    A.2. There is a comprehensive preventative maintenance program, which includes a written 
testing and maintenance program for all utility components included in the program at 
established intervals.  It is the responsibility of the Facilities Director to keep the 
preventative maintenance program accurate and ongoing. 

    A.3. See Utility Systems Preventative Maintenance Policies and Forms. 
 
 
B. CRITERIA ARE ESTABLISHED FOR IDENTIFYING, EVALUATING AND TAKING 

INVENTORY OF CRITICAL OPERATING COMPONENTS OF SYSTEMS TO BE INCLUDED 
IN THE UTILITY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM: 

     B.1. The Utility Systems Management Program shall include equipment that meets the 
following criteria: 
B.1.1.  Equipment maintains the climatic environment in patient care areas; 
B.1.2.  Equipment that constitutes a risk to patient life support upon failure; 

 
Title: Utility Systems Management Plan 

Department: Maintenance  
Original Date: January, 2002 Author: Marc Walker 
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B.1.3.  Equipment that is a part of a building system, which is used for infection control; 
B.1.4.  Equipment that is part of the communication system, which may affect the patient 
or  the patient care environment; 
B.1.5.  Equipment is an auxiliary or ancillary part of a system control or interface to patient 
care environment, life support or infection control. 

     B.2. The following systems are included in the Utility Systems Management Program: 
B.2.1.  Electrical Distribution System 
B.2.2.  Emergency Power System 
B.2.3.  Vertical and Horizontal Transport (elevators) 
B.2.4.  Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning Systems 
B.2.5.  Aerosolizing Water Systems 
B.2.6.  Plumbing and Water Delivery Systems 
B.2.7.  Boilers and Steam Delivery Systems 
B.2.8.  Medical Gas Distribution 
B.2.9.  Medical and Surgical Vacuum and Air Delivery Systems 
B.2.10. Communication Systems 
B.2.11. Sewage Removal Systems 

 
 
C. INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTAINING OF CRITICAL OPERATING COMPONENTS: 
     C.1. There is a scheduled maintenance system, which is used to schedule, monitor and 

document the testing and maintenance of each utility system based on the manufacturer’s 
recommendations. 

     C.2. See Preventative Maintenance Policies. 
 
 
D. INSPECTION, TESTING AND MAINTAINING OF PIPED MEDICAL GAS SYSTEM: 
     D.1. The Facilities Director will develop policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and 

maintenance of the piped medical gas system.  The testing will include master signal 
panels, area alarms, automatic pressure switches, shutoff valves, flexible connectors and 
outlets.   

     D.2. See Preventative Maintenance - Medical/Surgical Air and Vacuum System, Preventative 
Maintenance - Medical Gas System, Piped Medical Gas System Testing. 

 
 
E. PIPED MEDICAL GAS TESTING WHEN SYSTEMS ARE INSTALLED, MODIFIED OR 

REPAIRED: 
     E.1. A qualified person will test all piped medical gas systems when the systems are installed, 

modified or repaired.  The testing will include cross-connection testing, piping purity testing 
and pressure testing. 

     E.2. See Preventative Maintenance - Medical Gas System and Piped Medical Gas System 
Testing. 

 
F. MANAGEMENT OF PATHOGENIC BIOLOGICAL AGENTS IN DOMESTIC HOT WATER 

AND OTHER AEROSOLIZING WATER SYSTEMS: 
     F.1. The Facilities Director in conjunction with the Infection Control Practitioner will develop 

policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and maintenance of all aerosolizing 
water systems to ensure optimal use of pathogenic biological agents.  

     F.2. See Maintenance and Monitoring of Water Systems Policy. 
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G.  INSTALLATION AND MAINTAINING APPROPRIATE PRESSURE RELATIONSHIPS, AIR 

EXCHANGE RATES AND FILTRATION EFFICIENCIES FOR VENTILATION SYSTEMS 
SERVING AREAS SPECIALLY DESIGNED TO CONTROL AIRBORNE CONTAMINANTS: 

     G.1. To reduce the potential for nosocomial infections caused by biological agents, the         
Utilities Management Program will include the correct design, installation and 
maintenance of the hospital’s air-handling and ventilation systems.  Areas of the 
facility that treat or house patients who may be autoimmune suppressed include 
operating rooms, special procedure rooms, delivery rooms, protective isolation rooms, 
laboratories and sterile supply rooms. 

 
 The design parameters will follow the American Institute of Architects (AIA) Guidelines 

for Design and Construction of Hospital and Health Care Facilities, Table 2, page 58, 
“Ventilation Requirement for Areas Affecting Patient Care in Hospitals and Outpatient 
Facilities,” and Table 3, page 60 “Filter Efficiencies for Central Ventilation and Air 
Conditioning Systems in General Hospitals”. 

 
     G.2. The Facilities Director in conjunction with the Infection Control Practitioner will develop 

policies and procedures for the inspection, testing and maintenance of all ventilation 
systems serving areas specially designed to control airborne contaminants such as 
biological agents, gases, fumes and dust.  These areas include, but may not be limited to:  
G.2.1. Operating rooms 
G.2.2. Special procedure rooms 
G.2.3. Delivery rooms 
G.2.4. Airborne communicable disease rooms (i.e., “TB” rooms) 
G.2.5. Protective isolation rooms 
G.2.6. Laboratories 
G.2.7. Sterile supply rooms 

     G.3. The Infection Control Practitioner will maintain a pressure differential log for all negative 
air pressure rooms used for TB patients. 

     G.4. The Facilities Director will follow AIA guidelines for filter efficiencies, air pressure 
relationships, etc. 

 
 
H. DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN CURRENT UTILITY SYSTEMS OPERATIONAL PLANS 

ENSURING RELIABILITY, MINIMIZING RISKS AND REDUCING FAILURES: 
     H.1. A comprehensive preventative maintenance program, which includes written testing and 

maintenance programs for all utility components shall help to ensure reliability, minimize 
risks and reduce failures of utility systems.  It is the responsibility of the Facilities Director 
to keep the preventative maintenance program accurate and ongoing at the established 
intervals.  

     H.2. See Utility Systems Preventative Maintenance Policies and Forms. 
 
 
I. MAPPING DISTRIBUTION OF UTILITY SYSTEMS AND LABELING CONTROLS: 
     I.1. There are drawings mapping the distribution of utility systems, which indicate the controls 

for partial or complete shutdown of each utility system.  All emergency shutoff controls for 
the utility systems components shall be labeled clearly, visibly and permanently throughout 
the facility. 

     I.2. See Utility Systems Record Drawings. 
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J.  INVESTIGATION AND REPORTING INCIDENTS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS OF UTILITY 

SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT PROBLEMS, FAILURES AND USER ERRORS: 
     J.1. The utility systems incident reporting process is the responsibility of the Facilities Director 

or his/her designee.   
     J.2. A Utility Systems Failure Report shall be completed for any problem, failure or user error of 

a vital or essential system. 
     J.3. The Maintenance Department will respond to and correct all identified problems within the 

scope of their operations in a timely manner.  Evidence of the actions taken to resolve 
identified problems can be located in the Maintenance Department's Daily Log, the 
completed work orders file and the utility systems failure log. 

     J.4. The analysis of the utility systems incidents provides an opportunity to identify trends 
and/or patterns to determine if changes in the program may control or prevent future 
occurrences.  The Facilities Director supplies a summary of all utility systems failures to 
the Environment of Care Committee. 

     J.5. See Utility Systems Management Problems, Failures, User Errors Policy, Utilities 
Management Identified Problems Policy, System Failure Report Form, System Failure 
Report Log Form, Quarterly Report to Environment of Care Committee - Utility System 
Incidence. 

 
 
K. UTILITY MANAGEMENT PLAN INCLUDES AN ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION 

PROGRAM: 
     K.1. Department specific orientation and education to the utility systems safety is the 

responsibility of the department Director.  All employees will be trained during general 
orientation and annually thereafter on the process for reporting problems, procedures for 
maintaining essential functions during utility failures, location of emergency shut off 
controls and the procedures to follow if they alarm, procedures to follow in the event of an 
elevator failure and communication equipment protocols.  The training is documented and 
kept in the employee's department personnel file.   

     K.2. Personnel will be required to attend an orientation upon hire and regularly scheduled in-
services that specifically address utility systems capabilities, limitations, special 
applications, emergency procedures if failure occurs, maintenance responsibilities, the 
location and instruction on use of emergency shut off controls and reporting procedures for 
utility systems problems, failures and user errors.  All users/maintainers of equipment shall 
be tested for competency according to the components of their job specifications. 

     K.3. See Utilities Management User/Maintainer Training Policy, Maintenance Department 
Training Log Form, Utilities User/Maintainer Training Log Form, Utilities Management 
Continuing Education Policy, User Training for Utilities Equipment Log, Sample Outlines 
and Competency Forms. 

 
 
L. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
     L.1. There is a planned, systematic, interdisciplinary approach to process design and  

performance measurement, analysis and improvement related to organization wide safety.  
The organizational Environment of Care Committee will develop and establish 
performance measures and related outcomes, in a collaborative fashion, based on those 
priority issues known to be associated with the healthcare environment.  Performance 
measures and outcomes will be prioritized based upon high risk; high volume, problem 
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prone situations and potential or actual sentinel event related occurrences.  Criteria for 
performance improvement measurement and outcome indicator selection will be based on 
the following: 

     L.2. The measure can identify the events it was intended to identify: 
L.2.1. The measure has a documented numerator and a denominator statement or 

description of the population to which the measure is applicable; 
L.2.2. The measure has defined data elements and allowable values; 
L.2.3. The measure can detect changes in performance over time; 
L.2.4. The data intended for collection are available and Results can be reported in a way 

that is useful to the organization and other interested stakeholders. 
     L.3. The Environment of Care Committee on an ongoing basis monitors performance regarding 

actual or potential risk related to one or more of the following: 
L.3.1. Staff knowledge and skills 
L.3.2. Level of staff participation 
L.3.3. Monitoring and inspection activities 
L.3.4. Emergency and incident reporting 
L.3.5. Inspection, preventative maintenance, and testing of safety equipment 

     L.4. Other performance measures and outcomes will be established by the Environment of 
Care Committee, based on the criterion listed above.  Data sources, frequency of data 
collection, individual(s) responsible for data collection and aggregation, reporting will be 
determined by the Environment of Care Committee.   

L.5. To identify opportunities for improvement, the Environment of Care Committee will follow 
the organization's improvement methodology. 

     L.6. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be presented to the 
Environment of Care Committee by the Facilities Director at least on a quarterly basis, with 
a report of performance outcome forwarded to the Governing Body annually. 

     L.7. The following performance measures are recommended: 
L.7.1. Percent of staff able to demonstrate their knowledge and skill of their role and  

expected participation in the Utility Systems Management Program 
L.7.2. Number of utility incident reports 
L.7.3. Number of user errors reported 
L.7.4. Number of utility failures or interrupts 

     L.8. See Performance Improvement Plan and Performance Measures. 
 
 
M. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES FOR UTILITY SYSTEMS DISRUPTIONS AND FAILURES: 
     M.1. The Facilities Director is responsible for coordinating activities and ensuring procedures 

are developed that specify the action to be taken during the failure of major utility 
services.  Emergency procedures include: procedures to follow when a utility system 
malfunctions; alternate sources of essential utilities; shutoff procedures and controls of 
malfunctioning system; procedures for notifying personnel in the affected areas; how to 
obtain repair services; and procedures to perform emergency clinical interventions.  The 
written procedures include a call system for summoning essential personnel and outside 
assistance when required. 

     M.2. All clinical department managers are responsible for developing and maintaining 
emergency procedures of the utility systems as is relates to their use and application in 
patient care or treatment areas where a failure, interruption or malfunction could result in 
a negative patient outcome including serious injury or death.  The departmental 
emergency procedures will provide personnel with the essential information needed to 
perform during an emergency.  The emergency procedures will include: 
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M.2.1. Alternate sources of utilities or back-up protection provided; 
M.2.2. When alternate sources are not available procedures to follow until the utility 

system can be restored to normal function; 
M.2.3. Location of emergency shutoff controls; 
M.2.4. Conditions in which the utility may be shutoff; 
M.2.5. Assign authority to use the shutoff controls; 
M.2.6. How to report a failure or interruption; 
M.2.7. Obtaining emergency repair services; 
M.2.8. Specific information on emergency clinical interventions. 

     M.3. See Guidelines for Procedure for Failure of Essential Equipment Policy, Emergency 
Numbers List, Failure of Utility Systems Policies. 

 
 
N. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE UTILITY SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT PLAN: 
     N.1. The annual evaluation of the Utility Systems Management Program will include a review of 

the scope according to current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the degree in 
which the program meets accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the 
hospital.  A comparison of the expectations and actual results of the program will be 
evaluated to determine if the goals and objectives of the program were met.  The overall 
performance of the program will be reviewed by evaluating the results of performance 
improvement outcomes.  The overall effectiveness of the program will be evaluated by 
determining the degree that expectations where met. 

     N.2. The performance and effectiveness of the Utility Systems Management Program shall be 
reviewed by the Environment of Care Committee. 

     N.3. See Annual Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Utility Systems Management Program. 
 
 
 
Approval/Review/Revision 

Date: Signature Committee Chair Date: Signature Committee Chair Date: Signature Committee Chair 
03/19/09 U&E Subcommittee revised 01/31/12 U&E Subcommittee revised   
12/29/09 U&E Subcommittee revised     
01/11/11 U&E Subcommittee reviewed     
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PURPOSE 
Bartlett Regional Hospital’s (BRH) commitment to a safety management plan is designed to 
provide a physical environment free of hazards and to manage staff activities to minimize the 
risk of human injury.  It shall be directed to the safety of all employees, patients, and visitors 
interacting with the facility.  This safety management program will be an interactive process 
involving all staff members in its implementation and will be comprehensive in scope.  It shall 
ensure that personnel are trained to interact effectively with their environment and the 
equipment they use.  All elements of the Environment of Care (EOC) are incorporated or 
serve to support the BRH Safety Management Plan. 
 
SCOPE 
Bartlett Regional Hospital has established and maintains a Safety Management Plan.  The 
Safety Management Plan is risk based and describes how the organization will provide a 
physical environment free of hazards and manages staff activities to minimize the risk of 
injuries.  This safety management program will be an interactive process involving all staff 
members in its implementation and will be comprehensive in scope. It shall ensure that 
personnel are trained to interact effectively with their environment and the equipment they 
use.   
 
The plan provided processes for: 

A. Develop and maintain a written management plan that describes processes 
implemented to effectively manage the environmental safety of patients, staff and 
other people coming to BRH. 

B. Identify an individual (s) designated by leadership to manage risk, coordinate risk 
reduction activities in the physical environment, collect deficiency information, and 
disseminates summaries of actions and results. 

C. Identify an individual(s) to intervene whenever environmental conditions 
immediately threaten life or health or threaten damage to equipment or buildings. 

D. Conduct a proactive risk assessment that evaluates the potential adverse impact of 
buildings, grounds, equipment, occupants, and internal physical systems on the 
safety and health of patients, staff and other people coming to BRH facilities. 

E. Identify risks to select and implement procedures and controls to achieve the 
lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and health of patients, staff and 
other people coming to BRH facilities. 

F. Establish Safety policies and procedures that are distributed, practiced, enforced, 
and reviewed as frequently as necessary, but at least every three years. 

G. Ensure appropriate responses to product notices and safety. 
H. Ensure that all grounds and equipment are maintained appropriately. 
I. Conduct environmental tours (Swarms) to identify environmental deficiencies, 

hazards, and unsafe practices. 

 

Title: SAFETY MANAGEMENT PLAN 
Department: ALL 
Original Date: 12/27/13 Author: Safety Committee 
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J. Environmental tours are conducted at least every six months in all patient care 
areas and at least annually in all non-patient areas to evaluate the effectiveness of 
previously implemented activities intended to minimize or eliminate Environment of 
Care (EOC) risks. 

K. Adhere to the City and Borough Tobacco Ordinance 2007-20 and implements a 
process for monitoring compliance within the hospital and developed strategies to 
eliminate the incidence of tobacco use policy violations when identified. BRH 
encourages patients who do smoke to quit and provides education including 
information about smoking cessation options.  BRH has a “Tobacco Free Campus 
Policy” that resides in Policy Tech. The hospital policy prohibits tobacco use in all 
buildings and on its campus. 

L. Utilize internal sources such as ongoing monitoring of the environment, results of 
root cause analyses, results of annual proactive risk assessments of high-risk 
processes, and from credible external sources such as Sentinel Event Alerts. 

M. Select one high risk process at least every 18 months and complete a proactive 
risk assessment (LD.04.04.05 EP # 10). 

N. The hospital identifies activities to minimize or eliminate the risk of worker injuries.  
 
OBJECTIVES 

A. Comply with all relevant safety standards and regulations. 
B. Enforce current safety practices for staff, patients, physicians, and visitors. 
C. Provide regular safety education to all staff. 
D. Monitor the effectiveness of the safety program 
E. Identify opportunities to improve safety performance 

 
ELEMENTS OF PERFORMANCE:  
EC.01.01.01 (1.) 
Leaders identify an individual (s) to manage risk, coordinate risk reduction activities 
in the physical environment, collect deficiency information, and disseminate 
summaries of actions and results. 
 
BRH appoints a Safety Committee to be responsible for developing, implementing, 
monitoring, administering and directing an ongoing, organization-wide process to collect 
information about opportunities for improvement in the BRH Safety Management 
Program. The Chief Executive Officer appoints a Safety Officer to have the authority and 
duty to take immediate and appropriate action in the event that a hazardous condition 
exists which poses threat of life, personal injury illness, or the threat of damage to 
property. 

 
The Safety Committee (a multidisciplinary team composed of representatives of 
Administration, Quality, Risk Management, Clinical Services, Support Services, Infection 
Control, Facilities, and the BRH Safety Officer) examines and addresses all safety and 
health issues to ensure these issues are analyzed and addressed in a timely manner.  
 
The Board Quality Council receives reports of the activities of the Safety Management 
Program, reviews reports, and communicates concerns about identified issues and 
regulatory compliance.  The Board of Directors provides support to facilitate the ongoing 
activities of the Safety Program. 
 

Page 76 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



The Joint Commission places the responsibility for ensuring a safe environment on 
Senior Management. The CEO receives regular reports of the activities of the Safety 
Program through EOC.  The CEO may delegate these functions to another member of 
the Senior Management team.  The designee shall report to the CEO on all safety 
issues. 

 
EC.01.01.01 (2.) 
Leaders identify an individual(s), to intervene whenever environmental conditions 
immediately threaten health or threaten damage to equipment or buildings. 

 
Administration has delegated to the Safety Officer, or his designee, the authority to take 
action when hazardous conditions or potential hazardous conditions exist or to intervene 
whenever environmental conditions immediately threaten life, health or threaten to 
damage equipment or buildings. 

 
The Safety Committee is comprised of members who are chosen based upon their 
specific roles in the facility, special skills or experience, and their ability to work proactively 
in a group to provide action and results.  Members are to include representation from 
Administration and supervisory personnel from clinical and support services.  Members of 
the Safety Committee also have the authority to intervene when hazardous conditions 
exist that could result in personal injury to individuals or damage to equipment or 
buildings. 

 
 
EC.02.01.01 (1.) 
The hospital conducts annual comprehensive proactive risk assessments of high-risk 
processes that evaluate the potential adverse impact of buildings, grounds, equipment, 
occupants, and internal physical systems on the safety and health of patients, staff and 
other people coming to the hospital’s facilities. 

 
BRH Safety and Security Patrols provide comprehensive proactive risk assessments 
and any occurrences are reported to Risk Management.  This is designed to proactively 
evaluate the impact on patient care as it relates to the safety of the buildings, grounds, 
internal physical systems and the safe practices of hospital employees. 

 
The ongoing monitoring of performance regarding actual or potential risks in the 
environment of care is identified and communicated to the organization’s leaders at 
least annually for consideration and possible inclusion in the Hospital’s priority for 
improvements. 
1. Through a multi-disciplinary approach, all hospital personnel participates in 

creating an environment and culture of safety. 
2. Risk management policies and procedures on adverse incidents/occurrences and 

sentinel events are reviewed/revised annually to reflect changing and emerging 
trends related to patient and environmental safety. 

 
EC.02.01.01 and EC.04.01.03 
The hospital uses the risks identified to select and implement procedures and controls to achieve the 
lowest potential for adverse impact on the safety and health of patients, staff, and other people 
coming to the hospital facilities. 
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Results of incident reporting aggregated data is reported by the Risk Manager through the appropriate 
hospital committees with recommendations for process/systems improvement. 
 
Based on outcome, implementation of performance improvements are monitored by the Risk Manager 
for sustained process/systems improvement and results are reported for tracking and trending. 
 
Through a proactive Risk Management Plan, risk exposure assessment of loss, control and risk 
reduction activities are identified through the internal incident reporting system.  A corrective action 
plan is implemented with interventions, monitoring and evaluation for performance improvements 
which are addressed by the leadership, medical and hospital staff.   
 
LD.04.01.07 (2.) 
The hospital manages the implementation of safety policies and procedures that are distributed, 
practiced, and reviewed as frequently as necessary, but at least every three years. 
 
The Safety Committee will develop written policies and procedures to enhance safety within the 
hospital and its grounds.  Departments may maintain individualized safety policies as needed.  All 
safety policies will be reviewed as necessary, but at a minimum of every three years.  Revisions or 
changes will be reviewed by the Safety Committee.  
The ultimate responsibility for development and maintenance of current department specific safety 
policies shall lie with the department directors with the assistance of the Safety Committee as 
appropriate. 
 
EC.02.02.01 (11.) 
The hospital responds to product notices and safety recalls. 
 
An ongoing hazard surveillance program including response to product notices and safety recalls shall 
be maintained and reported through Risk Management to the Safety Committee then forwarded to the 
Environment of Care Committee. Hazard Surveillance Inspection Surveys (Swarms) will be 
conducted semi-annually in each area where individual department are service-oriented and annually 
in all other departments of the hospital.  All surveys will be evaluated to determine if trends or patterns 
are present.  A report will then be submitted to the Environment of Care Committee identifying 
deficiencies, recommendations, action taken and resolutions of the deficiencies following each survey. 
 
All product safety alerts, hazard notices and recalls will be directed to the appropriate Department 
Director. The Biomedical staff or /designee will check the clinical equipment inventory for equipment 
matches and evaluate the severity of the risk. In most cases, the notices will be addressed without 
removing equipment from service.  In the event equipment must be removed from service, the 
equipment is replaced with a safe effective substitute.  The Facilities Director, Biomedical staff or 
designee will impound equipment removed from use due to recall notices until it can be rendered safe.   
Hazard notices, recalls and follow up will be reported monthly to the Environment of Care Committee.  
 
EC.02.01.01 (5.) 
The hospital maintains all grounds and equipment.  
 
The Facilities Director/designee is responsible for supervising the activities of the ground’s 
maintenance crew.  The ground’s maintenance crew will maintain the property  and 
equipment according to the expectations of the hospital. 
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EC.02.01.03 (6.) 
The hospital takes action to maintain compliance with its smoking policy. 
 
Patients and visitors are reminded of the Tobacco Free Campus policy.  All employees are 
requested to inform violators of the tobacco use policy.  If there is resistance or the patient or 
visitor refuses to comply, the Security Officer/designee may be asked to intervene and escort 
the visitor from the building or the patient’s admitting physician will be contacted and asked to 
resolve the situation or discharge the patient.  If an employee is found smoking their direct 
supervisor will be notified and disciplinary action will be taken, if it is a contractor, they will be 
asked to leave the facility. 
 
EC.04.01.01 (14.) 
The hospital uses its tours to identify environmental deficiencies, hazards, and unsafe 
practices.  
Members of the Safety Committee conduct environmental tours (Swarms) to identify 
environmental issues, hazards and unsafe practices.  Data will be aggregated and reported 
back to the Safety Committee.  Deficiencies will be reported to the department director and 
returned back to the Safety Committee completed. 
 
EC.04.01.01 (15.) 
Every 12 months, the hospital evaluates each environment of care management plan, 
including a review of the plan’s objectives, scope, performance, and effectiveness. 
 
The annual evaluation of the Safety Management Program will include a review of the scope 
according to the current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the degree in which the 
program meets accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the hospital. A 
comparison of the expectations and actual results of the program will be evaluated to 
determine if the goals and objectives of the program were met. 
 
The performance and effectiveness of the Environment of Care Management Program shall 
be reviewed by the Environment of Care Committee and the Board Quality Council and 
Administration. 
 
EC.04.01.03  (1.)  
Representatives from clinical, administrative, and support services participate in the analysis 
of environment of care data. 
 
BRH’s Environment of Care Committee includes representatives from clinical, administrative, 
and support services who participate in the analysis of environment of care data on an annual 
basis. 
 
REFERENCE: BRH P&P "Tobacco Screening Inpatient Treatment and Referral." (Published 
policy resided in the Respiratory Department); 2013 HAS, January (EC1-EC28). 
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POLICY:    It is the policy of Bartlett Regional Hospital to comply with all federal, State of 
Alaska laws and regulations relating to the proper and safe handling and disposal of all 
hazardous materials and waste. 
 
 
PURPOSE:    
A. Bartlett Regional Hospital provides comprehensive healthcare and health promotion for the 

people of Juneau and communities of northern Southeast Alaska. 
 
B. To this effort Bartlett Regional Hospital provides a healthy and safe environment for our 

patients, visitors and staff by maintaining a process to effectively manage hazardous materials 
and waste throughout the facility.  

 
 
DEFINITIONS:  Hazardous Material:  Any material for which there is a physical or health 
hazard. 
 
 
SCOPE:    
A. The scope of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan defines the processes 

which Bartlett Regional Hospital utilizes to provide a safely controlled environment where 
hazardous materials are used in the facility by proactive risk assessments to reduce the 
risk of injury. 

 
B. Hazardous materials and waste risks are continually assessed and reviewed during hazard 

surveillance rounds, the collection of information through occurrence reports, product 
management and review by the EOC Committee.  Risk levels are determined by the level 
of potential consequences that are associated with the types, quantities, and inherent 
physical and chemical properties of the hazardous materials utilized by the facility. 

 
 
OBJECTIVE:    The objective of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan is to 
develop a system that addresses the identification, selection, handling, storage, use and 
disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. 
 
 
GOALS:  
A. The goals of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan include the following: 

A.1. To provide education to personnel on the elements of the Hazardous Materials and 
Waste Management Program. 

A.2. To identify, evaluate and inventory hazardous materials and waste generated or used 
consistent with applicable regulations and laws; 

A.3. To establish emergency procedures to use during hazardous materials and waste 
spills or exposures. 
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RESPONSIBILITY:     The Laboratory Manager and members of the subcommittee are 
responsible for developing and accessing (through monthly swarms) the Hazardous Materials 
and waste Management Program.   
 
 
PROCEDURE:   
A. Hazardous Materials and Waste Selecting, Handling, Storing, Transporting, Using and 

Disposing from Receipt or Generation through Use or Final Disposal:  
A.1. A system of products and forms has been developed that addresses the identification 

of hazardous materials and waste from selection to the point of final disposal.  
Policies and procedures related to various hazardous materials and wastes are 
reviewed, revised and approved by the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee  and EOC. 

A.2. The department managers will review the use of hazardous materials in their 
departments.  Recommendations should be taken Haz-Mat Sub-Committee. 

A.3. In an effort to reduce the use of hazardous materials, the department managers shall 
review  literature referencing the reduction of toxic materials and make 
recommendations regarding less hazardous products to the Haz-Mat Sub-
Committee. 

 
B. Written Criteria is Established Which is Consistent with Local, State and Federal Law to 

Identify, Evaluate and Inventory Hazardous Materials Used or Generated:   
B.1. Bartlett Regional Hospital will keep a list of materials classified by state and federal 

standards, i.e., OSHA, EPA, as being hazardous material or waste.  A copy of the 
list will be kept on the “W” drive under MSDS. 

B.2. Each department will be responsible for identifying and labeling all hazardous 
materials and waste within their department/area.   
B.2.1. Each department manager is responsible for ensuring the updated MSDS is 

added to the system. 
B.3. A Material Safety Data Sheet is to be obtained for every chemical used in the 

hospital and identified as hazardous.  A master file of all Material Safety Data Sheets 
is available on-line via Internet access under favorites. 

 
C. The Management of Chemical Waste, Chemotherapeutic Waste, Radioactive Waste and 

Regulated Medical Waste (i.e., Sharps):  
C.1. Policies and procedures relating to chemical and physical hazards shall be reviewed 

by the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee, EOC Committee and the Infection Control 
Committee for infectious hazards on an annual basis. 

C.2. All antineoplastic drugs shall be handled with special precautions according to 
instructions from the manufacturer.  All waste from antineoplastic drugs must be 
disposed of as hazardous waste in leak-proof, puncture-proof and appropriately 
marked containers specified for such.  All antineoplastic drugs identified as 
hazardous by the US Environmental Protection Agency/Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act (USEPA/RCRA) standards will be handled according to standards set 
forth by USEPA/RCRA, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
standards, the Hazard Communication Standard, the Occupational Exposure to 
Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories Standard and OSHA’s Controlling 
Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Drugs guidelines. 
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C.3. All radioactive materials are disposed of in accordance with the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission Regulations.   

C.4. All sharps, including hypodermic needles and syringes, suture needles, knife blades, 
trocars from drains and opened glass ampoules of medicine will be disposed of into 
puncture-proof sharps containers. 

 
D. Adequate and Appropriate Space and Equipment is Provided for the Safe Handling and 

Storing of Hazardous Materials and Waste:  
D.1. All hazardous materials are received in the department by appropriate personnel 

and stored in a designated supply closet for chemicals only.  Chemicals are properly 
labeled with a description of the hazard they represent. 

D.2. Materials which ignite easily under normal conditions (flammable), are considered 
fire hazards and will be stored in a cool, dry, well-ventilated storage space, away 
from areas of fire hazard. 

D.3. Highly flammable materials will be kept in an area separate from oxidizing agents 
(material susceptible to spontaneous heating, explosives, etc.). 

D.4. The storage area for flammables will be supplied with fire-fighting equipment, either 
automatic or manual.  There will be "flammable material" signs posted in and around 
the storage area. 

D.5. Oxidizers will not be stored close to liquids of low flash point. 
D.6. Acids and acid-fume-sensitive materials will be stored in a cool dry, well-ventilated 

area, preferably wooden. 
D.7. Materials which are toxic as stored or which can decompose into toxic components 

from contact with heat, moisture, acids or acid fumes will be stored in a cool, well-
ventilated place out of the direct rays of the sun.  Incompatible toxic materials will be 
isolated from each other. 

D.8. Corrosive materials will be stored in a cool, well-ventilated area (above their freeze 
point).  The containers will be inspected at regular intervals to ensure they are 
labeled and kept closed.  Corrosives will be isolated from other materials. 

D.9. Personal protective clothing and equipment will be available for use when handling 
these materials.  Staff are trained in the appropriate use of personal protective 
clothing and equipment by their department manager. 

 
E. Hazardous Gas and Vapors Monitoring and Disposing:  

E.1. Cylinder trucks and supports and cylinder valve protection caps will be used.  All full 
cylinder storage areas shall be protected from extremes of heat and cold and from 
access by unauthorized individuals. 

E.2. Regular visual inspections of compressed gas cylinders are performed to ensure 
cylinders are in safe condition. 

E.3. All pressure relief safety devices meet the Compressed Gas Association (CGA) 
requirements. 

E.4. Oxygen cylinders must be stored a minimum of 20 feet apart from fuel-gas cylinders 
or combustible materials. 

E.5. Oxygen equipment must not come in contact with any form of grease or oil. 
E.6. Areas using formaldehyde will be identified and monitored according to federal and 

state law. 
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F. All Hazardous Materials or Waste Spills, Exposures and Other Incidents are Reported and 
Investigated:    
F.1. An occurrence report will be completed on all hazardous materials and waste spills 

and exposures.  The department managers shall investigate all hazardous 
materials and waste spills and exposure.  The occurrence report will be reviewed 
and studied by the Risk Manager to determine the cause of the incident and if 
follow-up is needed by department managers.  The Quality Improvement (Q.I.) 
Department will provide a monthly report of all hazardous materials occurrences to 
the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee. 

 
G. Permits, Licenses and Adherence to Other Regulations are Maintained: 

G.1. Hazardous waste generation will be tracked, controlled and managed according to 
OSHA, DOT, EPA and state regulations. 

G.2. Bartlett Regional Hospital processes biohazard waste from various medical offices 
and other businesses. 

G.3. Biohazard waste generated by the hospital is processed through the Sanipak 
system.  All other items, identifiable body parts and radioactive and cytotoxic waste 
will be dealt with as appropriate in accordance with state and federal laws. 

 
H. Required Manifests for Hazardous Materials and Waste are Maintained:    

H.1. A component of the management and disposition of hazardous wastes is the 
removal of these materials from the point of generation to a specified treatment, 
storage or disposal facility. 

H.2. Records will be maintained identifying the generator, quantity, type and disposal 
action of the hazardous material or waste.   
H.1.1. A signature is required from the generating facility on each tracking record 

at the time of pick-up.  
H.1.2. A signature deems that the waste is compliant and packaged correctly 

according to regulations. 
H.3. Hazardous waste manifests will be maintained by the Facilities Manager.  The 

Facilities Manager is also responsible for maintaining all documents, including 
tracking records, shipping documents and the certificate of treatment or disposal for 
all hazardous materials removed from the facility. 

 
I. Hazardous Materials and Waste are Properly Labeled:  

I.1. Containers of hazardous chemicals must be labeled by the chemical manufacturer, 
importer or distributor with the following information prior to leaving the workplace: 
I.1.2. Identity of the hazardous chemical(s) as it appears on the MSDS and 

chemical list 
I.1.3. Name and address of the chemical manufacturer, importer or other 

responsible party 
I.2.  Labels must be in English, legible and prominently displayed on the container. 
I.3.  Labels and other forms of warnings are legible in English. 
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J. Hazardous Materials and Waste Storage and Processing Areas are Separated from Other 
Areas of the Facility:   
J.1. All medical and hazardous waste will be segregated and contained separately from 

other waste at the point of generation.  The department manager is responsible for 
ensuring there is appropriate separation and the waste is placed in properly 
constructed and labeled containers. 

J.2. Trained Environmental Services (EVS) staff will utilize red rigid containers to 
transport biohazard waste bags from the various hospital departments.  All 
containers will be labeled with the universal biohazard symbol.  EVS staff will wear 
the appropriate personal protective equipment when handling and transporting 
biohazard waste. 

J.3. Biohazard wastes will be stored in a designated locked and secured holding area 
for final disposal.  Warning signs will be posted in English.  

J.4. Medical waste holding areas will be inspected routinely by the EVS Manager.  Any 
deficiencies found will be dealt with promptly.  

 
K. An Orientation and Education Program for Employees who Manage or Have Contact with 

Hazardous Materials and Wastes is in Place:    
K.1. All persons required to manage or handle hazardous chemicals, materials or waste 

will be provided with appropriate orientation, personal protective equipment and job 
training.  Each department is responsible for training each individual handling 
hazardous materials and waste.  Employee orientation and education shall include 
the following: 
K.1.1. Information about the hazard communication program 
K.1.2. Identification of the hazardous materials in their workplace and the health 

hazards associated with handling these materials 
 
L. Performance Standards: 

L.1. EOC Committee will establish and prioritize performance measures. 
L.1.1. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be 

presented to the EOC Committee by the Haz-Mat Sub-Committee at least 
on a quarterly basis. 

L.2. The following performance measures are recommended: 
L.2.1. Quality Review will maintain a record of all Hazardous Materials spills and 

determine the cause.  Department Managers will report findings to Quality 
Review, who will report to the EOC. 

L.2.2. A Bio-Medical Technician will evaluate the effectiveness of vent hoods 
throughout the hospital for proper gas/vapor removal, and report findings to 
the EOC. 

 
M. Annual Evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan’s Objectives, 

Scope, Performance and Effectiveness:   
M.1. The annual evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management 

Program will include a review of the scope according to the current Joint 
Commission (TJC) standards to evaluate the degree in which the program meets 
accreditation standards and the current risk assessment of the hospital.  A 
comparison of the expectations and actual results of the program will be evaluated 
to determine if the goals and objectives of the program were met.  The overall 

Page 100 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



performance of the program will be reviewed by evaluating the results of 
performance improvement outcomes.  Each year the overall effectiveness of the 
program will be evaluated by review of the plans, objectives, scope, performance 
and effectiveness. 
M.1.1. The performance and effectiveness of the Hazardous Materials and Waste 

   Management Program shall be reviewed by the EOC Committee.  
M.2. Changes in the plan will be forwarded to the EOC Committee for approval. 
M.3. See Annual Evaluation of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management 

Plan/Program. 
 
 
REFERENCES:  

NIOSH “Preventing Occupational Exposures to Antineoplastic and Other Hazardous Drugs 
in Healthcare Settings”, March 2004. 

 
OSHA standards:  Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200);  
Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories (29 CFR 1910.1450) 
 
OSHA technical manual guidelines “Controlling Occupational Exposure to Hazardous 
Drugs” 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Approval/Review/Revision 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

09-01-03 (last version) 120213 Haz-Mat Subcommittee   
12-14-09 Haz-Mat Subcommittee     
012612 Haz-Mat Subcommittee     
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Title: Life Safety Management Plan 
Department/s: All Departments 
Original Date: January 2002 Author: M. Walker 
 
PURPOSE:  To provide an environment of care that is fire-safe and to design processes to 
prevent fires and protect patients, staff, and visitors in the event of a fire. The goals include the 
following: 
 

A.  To assure that the building is in compliance with applicable NFPA standards for hospitals; 
B. To provide education to personnel on the elements of the Life Safety Management 

Program including organizational protocols for response to, and evacuation in the event 
of a fire, 

C. To assure that personnel training in the Life Safety Management Program is effective, 
D. To test and maintain the fire alarm and detection systems, 
E. To institute interim life safety measures during construction or fire alarm or detection 

systems failures. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY:  

• The Facilities Manager and the Life Safety Management sub-committee of the Environment 
of Care committee share joint responsibility for the Life Safety Program and maintaining 
compliance with the Life Safety Code.   

• Each department manager is responsible for orienting new staff members to the 
department and job specific fire safety procedures.   

• All employees of Bartlett Regional Hospital are responsible for learning the hospital wide 
and departmental fire safety plans. 

 
POLICY: 
A. THE PROTECTION OF PATIENTS, EMPLOYEES, VISITORS AND PROPERTY FROM FIRE, 

SMOKE AND OTHER PRODUCTS OF COMBUSTION: 
A.1. Provide appropriate fire protection equipment, employee training and interim life safety 

measures.   
     A.2 In-service employees on the organizational response to fire, general fire safety, instructions 

for their departments and/or worksites, location of fire extinguishers, oxygen shutoffs and 
evacuation routes.   

    A.3. Oxygen shutoffs will be the responsibility of the supervisor in charge of the area in which 
these valves are located.  Turn off valves only if told to do so. 

    A.4. Fire Emergency required knowledge for all employees: 
      A.4.1. Know the location of the nearest fire alarm. 
      A.4.2. Know the emergency number to dial.  Dial “8900”. 
      A.4.3. Know the location of fire extinguishers and how to use them. 
      A.4.4. Know the location of all exits. 
      A.4.5. Know proper evacuation procedures and routes. 

    A.5. Each department has departmental fire procedures which can be found in Policy Tech:  
Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire or for general response, refer to the Emergency Colored Flipchart 
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B. INSPECTING, TESTING AND MAINTAINING FIRE PROTECTION AND LIFE SAFETY 
SYSTEMS: 

    B.1. The following fire alarm and detection equipment is tested and documented as required 
by NFPA: 

           B.1.1. Initiating devices are tested: 
B.1.1.1. All supervisory signal devices (except valve tamper switches) at least 

quarterly. 
B.1.1.2. All valve tamper switches and water flow devices at least annually. 
B.1.1.3. All duct detectors, electromechanical releasing devices, heat detectors, 

manual fire alarm pull stations and smoke detectors annually 
B.1.1.4. Occupant alarm notification devices are tested at least annually including all 

audible devices, speakers and visible devices. 
B.1.1.5. Off-site emergency forces notification transmission equipment is monitored 

automatically and continually by the fire alarm system and alarm monitoring 
service. For more details see Fire Alarm System policy.  

 B.1.2. All automatic extinguishing and protection equipment shall be inspected and tested 
as follows  

                      B.1.2.1. Main drain tests - at least annually at all system risers; 
B.1.2.2. Fire department connections - inspected at least quarterly; 
B.1.2.3. Kitchen automatic fire extinguishing systems – every 6 months - (discharge 

of fire extinguishing system not required); 
B.1.2.4. Portable fire extinguishers inspected at least monthly; maintained at least 

annually. For more details see the Fire Extinguisher Program policy. 
B.1.2.5. Fire and smoke dampers - at least every 6 years to verify they fully close; 
B.1.2.6. Automatic smoke detection shutdown devices for air handling equipment is 

monitored and tested annually; 
B1.2.7.  Helipad Fire Suppression will be tested annually 

B.1.3.  Fire Door Inspections 
B.1.3.1 All fire doors shall be inspected annually in accordance with procedures 

given below. 
B.1.3.2 Inspect condition of all door hardware (hinges, crash bar hardware, etc.). 
B.1.3.3 Inspect for positive latching of doors when released and closing under own 

weight. 
B.1.3.4  Any deficiencies shall be noted and immediate steps taken to correct them. 
B.1.3.5. Horizontal and vertical sliding and rolling fire doors - at least annually for 

proper operation and full closure. 
 

C. REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING LIFE SAFETY CODE AND FIRE PROTECTION 
DEFICIENCIES, FAILURES AND USER ERRORS: 

     C.1. A comprehensive plan to correct any Life Safety deficiencies, which occur or are identified 
will be developed immediately in writing and will address: 

       C.1.1. All Life Safety Code deficiencies 
       C.1.2. Corrective actions (plan for improvement) 
       C.1.3. Total cost of actions and specific funding information 
       C.1.4. Reasonable schedule for completion, prioritized with available funding and 

concurrent projects 
       C.1.5. Interim life safety measures will be implemented and enforced as necessary 
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    C.2. All fire protection equipment failures or user errors shall be reported immediately and 
appropriate action taken.  When a user error occurs, retraining will be conducted. 

D. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE LIFE SAFETY MANAGEMENTPLAN: 
D.1. Review of the scope based the current Joint Commission standards to evaluate the 

degree in which the program meets accreditation standards and the current risk 
assessment of the hospital.   

D.2  Compare expectations and actual results of the program to determine if the goals and 
objectives of the program were met.   

D.3  Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the program determining the degree that 
expectations where met,  including an evaluation of the effectiveness of personnel 
training related to the Life Safety Plan and its components. 

D.4. The performance and effectiveness of the Life Safety Management Program shall be 
reviewed by the Environment of Care Committee, with summary reports delivered to 
the Board Quality Council. 

D.5.  Annual Evaluation documentation will be maintained. 
 

E. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
E.1.The Environment of Care Committee monitors performance regarding actual or potential 

risk related to one or more of the following: 
      E.1.1. Staff knowledge and skills; 
      E.1.2. Level of staff participation; 
      E.1.3. Monitoring and inspection activities; 
      E.1.4. Emergency and incident reporting; 
      E.1.5. Inspection, preventive maintenance and testing of safety equipment 

E.2. Performance improvement monitoring and outcome activities will be presented to the 
Environment of Care Committee by the Safety Officer and Life Safety Subcommittee 
annually. 

E.3. The following performance measures are suggested: 
E.3.1. Percent of staff able to demonstrate their knowledge, skill and level of 

participation in the life safety management program. 
E.3.2. Number of fire drills conducted with at least 50% of these on an 

unannounced basis 
E.3.3. Percent of staff who can describe organizational protocols for fire response 
E.3.4. Percent of staff who can describe evacuation procedures for their unit 
E.3.5. Percent fully operational fire doors 
E.3.6. Percent of tests completed for: 

E.3.6.1. Supervisory signal devices - Quarterly 
E.3.6.2. Valve tamper switches - Semiannually 
E.3.6.3. Duct detectors - Annually 
E.3.6.4. Smoke detectors - Annually 
E.3.6.5. Heat detectors - Annually 
E.3.6.6. Manual fire alarm pull stations - Annually 
E.3.6.7. Electromechanical releasing devices - Annually 
E.3.6.8. Occupant alarm notification devices - Annually 
E.3.6.9. Emergency forces notification transmission equipment - 

Quarterly 
F. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

     F.1. Emergency procedures will be developed and updates maintained in Policy Tech. 
F.2. The following emergency procedures will be implemented in the event of a fire: 
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F.2.1. R = Rescue or remove person(s) from immediate fire scene / room. 
F.2.2. A = Alert personnel by activating nearest fire alarm pull station, then call PAS 

(dial 8900) and report exact location of the fire. 
F.2.3. C = Confine fire and smoke by closing all doors and windows in the area. 
F.2.4. E = Extinguish the fire using fire extinguisher if safe to do so. 

     F.3. General Instructions for All Employees: 
F.3.1. Keep telephone lines clear for fire control. 
F.3.2. Do not use elevators. 
F.3.3. Make sure all fire, corridor and room doors are closed. 
F.3.4. Clear all corridors of equipment and obstructions. 
F.3.5. All nursing personnel shall report to their areas and remain there for instructions. 
F.3.6. All other personnel shall report to their areas and await emergency assignment 

as needed. 
F.3.7. Reassure patients.  Inform them that the alarm has been turned in, the 

emergency plan is in effect, and there is an abundance of help to assist as 
needed. 

F.3.8. Know evacuation routes 
F.3.9  Keep exits clear of obstructions 

     F.4. See Emergency Management Plan; Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire 
 
G. REVIEW OF PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS OF FURNISHINGS AND EQUIPMENT FOR FIRE 

SAFETY 
G.1. All purchases of hospital furnishings and equipment will be reviewed to assure that they 

meet the NFPA requirements for fire retardant or non-combustibility.  
G.2. The Safety Officer and the Director of Materials Management are responsible for 

reviewing new products to verify they meet code requirements.   
G.2.1  Materials Management will inform the Safety Officer of any unavailability of NFPA 

approved items. 
G.3  The Facilities Director is responsible for the installation of fire rated products during 

construction. 
H. ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION TO LIFE SAFETY PROGRAM 

H.1. All personnel (including volunteers, students, interns, physicians and other licensed 
independent practitioners) will be oriented to the Life Safety Plan and their roles in the 
event of a fire.  This includes: 
H.1.1  use of fire alarm systems  
H.1.2  containing smoke/fire with building compartmentalization,  
H.1.3  preparing for building evacuation including the location and proper use of 

equipment to evacuate or transport patients to a safe area.   
H.2 All new personnel will receive general fire safety information before beginning work in their 

respective departments.   
H.3 Department specific orientation will be done in their home department by knowledgeable 

staff to include: 
H.3.1  location of fire alarm pull stations and extinguishers,  
H.3.2  evacuation routes,  including all exits  
H.3.3  department specific fire hazards,  
H.3.4  department specific concerns.   

H.4 All employees will review fire safety information at least annually in a mandatory continuing 
education program (classroom, self-study, or online review)   
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H.4.1 Attendance records will be maintained by the employee and the education 
department for mandatory training   

H.4.2 The Life Safety Subcommittee will obtain data on the number of employees 
completing orientation and continuing education and report to the EOC Committee. 

H.5  Fire Drills will be conducted based on recommendations: 
H.5.1  Clinical Areas:  one per quarter per shift 
H.5.2  Business offices:  one per year 

H.6. Effectiveness of the education and training program will be evaluated via ongoing review 
of fire drill critiques and periodic random on-site “swarming”.  

 
I. MAINTAINING BUILDING STRUCTURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE PROTECTION: 

I.1. All buildings associated with Bartlett Regional Hospital will maintain compliance with the 
appropriate provisions of the Life Safety Code of NFPA.  Documentation of all life safety 
requirements will be maintained on an ongoing basis.  The Facilities Director is 
responsible for maintaining and managing all structural elements of life safety. 

I.2. During periods of construction, renovation, transition, see Interim (Construction) Life Safety 
Policy.    

 
REFERENCES: 
Interim (Construction) Life Safety Policy 
Emergency Management Plan: Vol. 2 Annexes: Fire (available in Policy Tech under Vol. 2 Annex: 
Fire) 
Fire Extinguisher Program Policy  
Fire Alarm System  
Annual Evaluation of the Life Safety Management Program (available on the “W” drive) 
 

 
Approval/Review/Revision 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

Date: Signature:(Medical Director or 
Committee Chair, as appropriate) 

03/13/08 revised     
05/29/09 Revised  

Debbi Lehner, COO 
    

02/11/10 Review     
2/8/13 revised     
12/23/13 revised     
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BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL 
INFECTION CONTROL PLAN 2014 

 
 
 
 
This plan has been developed with input and collaboration from the following: 

 
• Infection Control 

Committee 
 

 
• Quality and Process  

Improvement 

• Medical Staff • Department Managers 
  

 
 
Infection Control Plan Reviewed by: 
 
 
 Signature Date 

Infection Control Committee Chair   

Quality and Process Improvement 
Director 

  

Infection Preventionist 
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Bartlett Regional Hospital 
 
Infection Prevention Plan 2014 
 
 
Mission: To provide a safe environment for all patients, visitors, and healthcare workers through the prevention of infection 
transmission and the provision of a safe environment. 
 
Objectives: The objectives of the Bartlett Regional Hospital Infection Prevention Program are: 
 

1 Early identification of infections, both expected and unexpected 
2 Timely implementation of interventions when infections or risks thereof are identified 
3 Analysis of organizational and individual practices that impact transmission of infection 
4 Implementation of evidence-based practices known to reduce the transmission of infection 
5 Education of healthcare workers, patient, families, and visitors on infection risk-reduction practices 
6 Limitation of unprotected exposure to pathogens throughout the organization 
7 Enhancement of hand hygiene practices  by all persons within the hospital system 
8 Minimization of the risk of transmitting infections associated with the use of procedures, medical equipment, and 

medical devices 
9 Incorporation of guidelines and recommendations published by regulatory or accrediting agencies, and professional 

organizations, to provide current evidence-based infection prevention strategies and policies. 
10 Provision of Employee Health services, including appropriate screening, testing, immunization, counseling, and education 

for staff and others who have the potential for exposure to communicable disease. 
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Infection Prevention Authority and Responsibility (9430.000) 
 
PURPOSE: To institute any surveillance, prevention, and control measures when there is reason to believe that any patient or 
personnel may be in danger of acquiring nosocomial infection or infectious disease 
 
A. Administration, Medical Staff, and Governing Body approve the authority statement. 
 
B. The authority statement is reviewed and authenticated every two years. 

 
C. In accordance with Medical Staff Bylaws, the physician members of the Infection Control Committee are appointed by the 

President of the Medical Staff; the appointed term is for one year.   
 
D. Members of the Infection Control (IC) Committee and / or the Infection Preventionist have the authority to institute 

surveillance, prevention, and control measures.  When there is reason to believe that any patient or personnel may be in 
danger of acquiring a nosocomial infection or communicable disease, control measures may include closure of rooms, units, 
departments, or management of hospital visitors. 

 
E. In the absence of the Infection Preventionist (after hours or during periods of leave), the House Supervisor will assume 

responsibility for daily infection control and surveillance, ensuring that isolation protocols are initiated and/or discontinued 
for patients as indicated. 

 
F. The Chair of the Infection Control Committee and/or the Infection Preventionist (or designee) have the authority to establish 

controls to reduce and stop the spread of infection and communicable disease, including the ordering of microbiological 
cultures and TB skin testing when indicated. 

 
G. The scheduled quarterly meeting of the IC Committee will not be timely to address time-sensitive issues.  In the event that 

time-sensitive issues that endanger life or create a patient or employee safety concern, immediate action will be taken to 
alert those necessary to correct the situation. 
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H. Issues or situations of any level of criticality may be brought to the attention of the committee members through the 
Infection Preventionist, Case Managers, Department Directors, other medical or unit staff, or the Quality/ Risk Management 
department. 

 
I. Critically significant situations should be brought to the attention of the IC Committee physician chair as soon as they are 

identified.  
 
J. The level of criticality should guide committee decisions for referral or action when an infection safety issue is identified. 

 
K. Actions appropriate for the IC Committee chair to take may include: 

 
K.1. Calling an ad hoc IC Committee meeting, if appropriate for timely response. 

K.2. Directly contacting the physician chair of the committee that has authority over the situation. 

L. The IC Committee chair may directly contact another staff (physician or Senior Leaders) who has authority to correct the 
critical situation without further delay. 
 

M. When a safety issue is identified, and the committee requires additional information or resources, the committee will bring 
the issue immediately to the attention of one of these functioning committees: 

 
M.1. Specific Service Line Committee Chair in which the threat is occurring 
M.2. Medical Staff Quality Improvement Committee (MSQIC) Chair  
M.3. Medical Staff Executive Committee Chair. 

 
N. IC Committee medical staff will collaborate with others as appropriate to make decisions based on patient/employee safety. 

  
O. All situations that are identified, their level of criticality, actions taken, and any follow up recommendations will be reported 

through the IC Committee to the MSQIC and/or Hospital Quality Improvement Committee (HQIC), as appropriate. 
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P. The Infection Control Committee reviews and approves, at least every two years, all hospital-wide and department-specific 
policies and procedures related to the infection surveillance, prevention, and control programs of the Infection Control 
Committee and all departments. 

 
Q. The Infection Preventionist is designated as the Infection Control Officer, and is responsible to develop and implement 

policies governing control of infection and communicable disease. 
 

R. The IC Committee operates as a review organization, and so is entitled to the protections offered by Alaska Statute (AS 
18.23.030) and federal law (HQIA). 

 
S. The minutes of the Infection Control Committee are forwarded to the Medical Staff Executive Committee and the 

Administrator. 
 
 
Risk Assessment and Prioritization of Goals 

 
The Infection Prevention Committee, in collaboration with hospital leadership, identifies risks for transmitting and acquiring 
infection within the organization, based on the many factors discussed below. The Committee will develop a risk assessment at least 
annually, or when significant changes materially change risk prioritization (noted below), using information from all applicable 
committees and individuals as appropriate. Consideration will be given to those issues which are high risk, high volume, and problem 
prone, to new techniques, or which are related to emerging trends. The Committee will develop action plans to address these issues 
(see Risk Assessment and current Prioritization List). The factors to be addressed in the risk assessment include, at a minimum: 
 
Geographic Location and Community Environment 
Bartlett Regional Hospital is a community-owned acute care hospital licensed for a total of 55 inpatient beds and 16 residential 
substance abuse treatment facility beds in the Rainforest Recovery Center. BRH is managed by a board of directors appointed by the 
Assembly of the City and Borough of Juneau. Bartlett serves a 15,000-square-mile region in the northern part of Southeast Alaska. 
Approximately 55,000 people reside in the service area, most in communities inaccessible by road. Juneau itself – the largest city in 
the region and the capital of Alaska with a population of approximately 31,000—is accessible only by water or air. 
 
Characteristics of the Population Served 
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Bartlett Regional Hospital is the largest provider of hospital services in Southeast Alaska. It serves a diverse community of residents 
including minority groups such as Alaska Native, Filipino, and Hispanic. Tourism expands the service area population by 
approximately 30% from May to September each year, welcoming visitors from many countries.  
 
This seasonal influx presents ongoing significant potential for mass trauma and communicable disease outbreak, requiring BRH to 
maintain careful surveillance, awareness of global emerging infectious disease trends (Pandemic Influenza, MDR Tuberculosis, CRE, 
etc.) and to maintain an updated emergency management and surge capacity plan. 
 
Results of Analysis of Bartlett Regional Hospital Infection Prevention Data 
Bartlett Regional Hospital conducts hospital-wide surveillance for all types and categories of infection. The surveillance results from 
surgical infections (SSI), device-related infections (Central Line Associated Blood Stream Infection[CLABSI], Catheter Associated 
Urinary Tract Infection [CAUTI], and Ventilator Associated Events (VAE), and communicable disease exposure events are reviewed 
for variance and reported to hospital leaders, the Patient Safety Committee, the Special Care Committee, and medical staff as 
appropriate.  A yearly Infection Prevention Plan and a summary analysis of the prior year’s plan, goals, strategies, activities, and 
issues are submitted annually to the Governing Board. 
 
Evaluation of the Infection Control and Prevention Plan 
Plan evaluation is an ongoing process that is measured and reported annually by comparing the described measurable objective to 
the observations/measurements as described in the plan.  If the objective is met, then that particular goal is considered to be met 
for the plan year. 
 
Care, Treatment, and Services Provided 
Bartlett Regional Hospital’s 2014 strategic plan notes twenty-four services that are provided on campus. High-risk and high volume 
services are included in the risk assessment process. 
 
Employee Health 
Bartlett Regional Hospital provides a safe working environment for its approximately 530 employees (430 FTEs), through 
coordination of Infection Prevention policies and practices, and through the services provided by the Employee Health Program such 
as Hepatitis B vaccination, annual TB testing, and screening for immunity to vaccine-preventable diseases. Employee illnesses are 
categorized and logged daily by the House Supervisor, and analyzed and reported by the Infection Preventionist quarterly. The goal 
is to identify and mitigate infectious conditions that may pose a risk to patients, visitors, or staff, and to ensure that staff are 
immune to vaccine-preventable diseases.  
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Emergency Preparedness 
Bartlett Regional Hospital maintains readiness to respond to both internal and external threats and emergencies through its 
Emergency Management Plan, Emergency Management Team, Environment of Care Committees, and Infection Control Committee 
and Policy Manual. 
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2013 Infection Control Plan  
 
 
Infection Prevention Goal #1 Measurable Objective Measurement/ Evaluation 

►Improve compliance with 
CDC Hand Hygiene Guidelines 

BRH hand hygiene rates will be better than 
national average for hand hygiene in 
healthcare facilities (average 40%) and 
improved over the 79% compliance rate 
measured in 2013 
 
 

Measure BRH hand hygiene compliance rates and 
compare to national average and 2013 rate. 
 
 
 

 
Infection Prevention Goal #2 Measurable Objective Measurement/ Evaluation 

►Prevent Central Line 
Associated Bloodstream 
Infections (CLABSI) in patients 

Maintain zero CLABSI rate per 1000 central 
line days in 2014. 
 

Measure CLABSI rates and compare to 2013 
baseline. 
Report rates via NHSN. 

 
Infection Prevention Goal #3 Measurable Objective Measurement/Evaluation 

►Improve compliance with 
Global Immunization Measures 

BRH Global Immunization rates will be 
equal to or greater than the national 
average. 
 

Compare 2014 compliance with national average 
 
Report rates on a quarterly basis 

 
Infection Prevention Goal #4 Measurable Objective Measurement/Evaluation 

►Reduce Catheter-associated 
Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTI) 
in patients 

Retain CAUTI rates to below 1.6 per 1000 
catheter days (NHSN benchmark) in 2014. 

Compare 2014 rates to prior year and NHSN 
benchmark. Report rates via NHSN. 
 

 
Infection Prevention Goal #5 Measurable Objective Measurement/Evaluation 
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►Prevent transmission of 
MRSA in the facility 

Maintain zero percent rate of inpatient 
transmission of healthcare-acquired MRSA 
infections for 2014. 

Measure and report MRSA infection transmission 
for 2014... 
 Report MRSA rates via NHSN. 

 
Infection Prevention Goal #6 Measurable Objective Measurement/Evaluation 

►Prepare for and protect staff 
from influenza exposure in the 
workplace 

Staff influenza vaccination at rates greater 
than 2013-2014 season. 

Compile staff influenza vaccination rates for 2013-
2014 seasons and compare to prior year. Report 
data via NHSN.  

 
Infection Prevention Goal #7 Measurable Objective Measurement/Evaluation 

►Prevent transmission of 
norovirus in the facility 

No norovirus transmission will be identified 
in 2014. 
 

No documented norovirus transmission among 
patients in 2014. 
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The Bartlett Regional Hospital  
2014 Emergency Management Plan  

is not included in the packet  
due to its size (300+ pages).   

 
No substantial changes were made 

to this plan for 2014. 
 

If Board members are interested in reviewing  
the Plan in its fullness prior to the meeting,  

please contact: 
 

Bethany Rogers 
796-8695 

Marc Walker 
796-8888 
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A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

BYLAWS 2014 

Page 118 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



January 17, 2014 
 
Most of this version looks like what you have seen before.  There were a few changes presented 
to the Exec Comm earlier this month, most of them suggested by Jane Sebens from CBJ Law. 
 
In order the changes are: 
 
0123 Contracting Authority - Jane's comment: clarified the Board’s authority to delegate & 
establish parameters for CEO’s negotiation & execution of contracts. 
 
0131  Nancy and I made a minor change to reflect reality 
 
0144 Vacancy - Jane's comment: incorporated Committee (Mary/Nancy) suggestion to reference & 
supplement vacancy conditions in Code – which I agree is a good idea 
 
0154.2 Finance Committee - Jane's comment: made the budget process description consistent with 
Code, with suggestion that April 1 deadline for Committee to submit budget to Board be changed.    
                  Nancy and I discussed the date issue and decided to leave it as is.  You will note that the 
changes Jane made not only follow code but represent reality. 
 
0162 Quorum - minor change to follow city code 
 
0164 Call of Meetings – Jane's comment: deleted discretion re calling meetings, as the Code 
mandates a meeting once a month & doesn’t authorize an exception 
 
0172 Voting - Jane's comment: referenced Code and clarified the vote reduction rule when there is 
a conflict  
 
0173 Executive Sessions - Jane's comment: corrected the ‘no action’ rule to allow direction to an 
attorney or labor negotiator, per Alaska Open Meetings Act 
 
0223 Duties and Responsibilities (of Administrator) –  Jane's comment: included, by Code reference, 
the duties & responsibilities set out in CBJ 40.10.020  
 
0321, 0351, 0361, 0362, 0363, 0364 re Medical Staff – Jane's comments: clarified:  the establishment of 
membership eligibility criteria by Med Staff, the Med Staff membership recommendation & Board 
review process & the authority & mandate of the Hospital Board to establish hearing rules and 
procedures (& the content authorized to be in those rules/procedures) 
 
0410 Auxiliary and Associated Organization – Jane's comment: deleted for lack of Board authority to 
establish 
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 VOTING MAJORITIES 
 
 
 
BYLAWS Recommendation to Adopt, Amend or Repeal 

 Prevailing vote of at    
 (0131 - Page 3)     least six members. 

 
 
REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBER RECOMMENDATION  Prevailing vote of at 

 (0144 - Page 4)     least six members. 
 
 
QUORUM - BOARD MEETING Five members of the   
 (0162 – Page 10) board shall constitute 

a quorum. 
 
 
VOTING  Prevailing vote of at 

 (0172 – Page 12) least five members. 
 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR Prevailing vote of a 

 (0211 - Page 16) majority of the Board. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 0100  
NAME & PURPOSE - 0110 

 
 
0111 NAME 
 

The governing body of the Bartlett Regional Hospital shall be known as the Board 
of Directors. 

 
0112 PURPOSE 
 

1. To provide and manage facilities, personnel and services designed to diagnose 
and treat patients. Quality patient care shall be provided to sick, injured or 
disabled persons without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, 
sexual orientation, disabilities, pregnancy, parenthood, marital status, or change in 
marital status. 

 
2. To provide appropriate facilities and services to best serve the needs of patients; 

to improve the standards of health care; to encourage education and training of 
hospital employees and staff appointees; and to maintain the quality of patient 
care that is achievable with resources available. 

 
3. To carry on education activities for the promotion of health in the community.  

 
4. To manage, operate or participate insofar as hospital policy, circumstances and 

available funds may warrant, any activity designed and carried on to promote 
general health in the community. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 0100  
AUTHORITY & GENERAL 
POWERS 0120 

 
0121 AUTHORITY 
 

The Board of Directors is constituted, authorized, and governed by the Charter and 
Ordinances of the City and Borough of Juneau. 
(CBJ Charter, Article III, Section 3.15; C.B.J. Chapter 40.05) 

 
 
0122 GENERAL POWERS 
 

Subject to state laws and other City and Borough Ordinances, CBJ 40.05.020 
provides in part that the Board of Directors shall be responsible for the operation 
of all licensed hospitals owned or leased by the City and Borough according to the 
best interests of the public's health, shall make and enforce all rules and 
regulations necessary for the administration of hospitals under its management, 
shall prescribe the terms under which patients shall be admitted thereto and shall 
establish and enforce standards of operation.  The Board shall, within the hospital 
appropriation, establish and may amend the pay plan for hospital employees. 

 
0123 CONTRACTING AUTHORITY 

The Board is responsible for approving all contracts for supplies, services, or 
professional services, or amendments thereto, relating to the Board’s power and 
authority as established by CBJ 40.05.020.  No contract may be approved unless 
the contract complies with the CBJ Charter and CBJ Municipal Code.  Unless 
otherwise provided by law, the Board may delegate to the CEO authority to 
negotiate and/or execute all contracts, or may establish parameters by contract 
type and/or dollar amount, for the exercise of such authority with or without 
approval of the Board.  

 

Page 125 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



BOARD OF DIRECTORS – 
0100 FUNCTIONS - 0130 

 
 
0131 LEGISLATIVE 

 
1. The Board of Directors shall recommend bylaws and provide policies and 

procedures for the administration and governance of the hospitals, which 
bylaws shall become effective upon approval of the City and Borough 
Assembly by resolution.  The Assembly may accept the bylaws recommended 
by the Board, may reject such bylaws or may modify them.  A manual of 
bylaws shall be maintained.  (CBJ 40.05.030) Policies and procedures shall 
become effective after being adopted by the Board of Directors.  A manual of 
policies and procedures of the BRH Board shall be maintained and 
established as the Board Manual.  

 
2. Annually, the President of the Board shall appoint two board members to 

review the bylaws. They shall make their recommendations to the Executive 
Committee. 

 
3. The bylaws shall then be reviewed at the next regular meeting of the Board 

and voted on at a following meeting. 
 

4. Any changes approved by the prevailing vote of at least six members of the 
Board shall be submitted to the CBJ Assembly for approval by resolution.  

 
 
0132 EVALUATION 
 

The Board of Directors shall annually evaluate its performance against the 
strategic plan and against the goals and objectives established by the Board.   
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       MEMBERSHIP - 0140 
 
 
0141 NUMBER AND APPOINTMENTS 
 

The Board of Directors shall consist of nine members appointed by the Assembly 
for staggered three-year terms.  Board members shall serve at the pleasure of the 
Assembly.  Up to two members of the hospital Board of Directors may be 
physicians in the community appointed from a list of those names submitted by 
the hospital medical staff. Terms shall commence on January first. 
(CBJ 40.05.010) 

 
0142 EXPECTATIONS 
 

A voting member shall show willingness to give as much time as is reasonably 
requested or required.  The applicant must be willing to accept responsibility for 
governance, including availability to participate actively in board and committee 
activities; to provide effective governance and to utilize experience in 
organizational and community activities. 

 
0143 TERM 
 

The term of membership shall be three years and until a successor takes office, 
except that a member appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the un-expired 
term. 

 
0144 VACANCY 
 

In addition to the vacancy provisions set out in CBJ 40.05.050, the following 
provisions shall apply: 

 
1. A recommendation to the Assembly for removal of a board member may be 

made upon the prevailing vote of at least six members of the Board.  
 

2. A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Assembly, 
with a copy to the President of the Board. Such resignation shall take effect on 
the date of receipt or at any later time specified. 
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0145 COMPENSATION 
 

1. Board members and members of all committees shall receive no 
compensation for any services rendered in their capacities as board 
members or committee members.  However, nothing herein contained shall 
be construed to preclude any  board member or committee member from 
receiving compensation for expenses incurred in serving the hospital as a 
board member. 

 
2. Before any reimbursement for expenses is made, receipts of such 

expenses must be submitted to the Administrator. 
 

3. The Board of Directors may maintain membership in any local, state or 
national group or association organized and operated for the promotion of 
the public health and welfare or the advancement of the efficiency of 
hospital administration and, in connection therewith, the hospital will pay 
dues and fees thereto. 
(CBJ 40.05.070) 

 
 
0146 TRAINING 
 
 The Board shall provide training to board members on the functions of the Board, 

the general operations of the hospital, and the history and traditions of the hospital 
and its relationship with the community.  

        
1. Each new board member will be given, not later than their first regular meeting 

as a board member and for their use and possession for the duration of their 
term, a copy of the Board Bylaws, the Board Manual and any other documents 
as deemed appropriate. 

 
2. The Board shall provide ongoing education on board governance, compliance 

responsibilities, and the health care industry.  
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0151 ORGANIZATION MEETING 
 

The Board shall elect annually from its members a President, Vice President, 
Secretary and such other officers as it deems necessary. 
(CBJ Section 40.05.040) 

 
 
0152 OFFICERS 
 

1.  The officers of the Board shall be a President, a Vice President, and a 
Secretary. 
 

2. Officers shall be elected annually according to the schedule in the Board 
Manual, and each shall hold office for a one year term and until successors 
shall have been elected.  Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. 
 

3. Any officer may resign their office at any time by giving written notice to the 
Board.  Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt or at any later 
time specified.  
 

4. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, and shall be an ex-
officio voting member of all committees except the nominating committee.  
The President shall be the Chairperson of the Executive Committee. 
 

5. The Vice-President shall act as President in the absence of the President, 
and when so acting, shall have the power and authority of the President.  The 
Vice President shall succeed to the office of President for the unexpired term 
if that office becomes vacant. 
 

6. The Secretary shall ensure the retention of minutes of all meetings of the 
Board and board committees, and shall ensure appropriate public notice is 
given for all meetings of the Board and its committees in accordance with 
these bylaws or as required by law.  The Secretary shall ensure that the 
records and reports of the Board are kept as required by law. 

 
7. Upon a vacancy in the office of Vice President, or Secretary, the Board shall 

hold an election at its next regular meeting to fill such vacancy for the 
unexpired term. 

 
 
0153  COMMITTEES 

 
1. The Board shall establish an Executive Committee, a Finance Committee, a 

Planning Committee, and a Quality Assurance Committee and a Joint 
Conference Committee.  The Board shall assign such duties and 
responsibilities to the committees or appoint such other committees as it 
deems necessary. 
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2. The President shall appoint the Chair and members of all committees. 

 
3. With the exception of the Executive Committee, committees of the Board 

shall, when specifically charged to do so by the Board, conduct studies, 
make recommendations to the Board, and act in an advisory capacity, but 
shall not take action on behalf of the Board. 

 
4. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, committees shall consist of no 

fewer than two board members and shall serve until the committee is 
discharged.  

 
5. A board member may request or refuse appointment to a committee and the 

refusal to serve on any one committee shall not be grounds for failure to 
appoint that board member to another committee. 

        
6. A committee shall be convened by the Chair or designee who shall report for 

the committee.  The chair shall ensure that minutes will be kept and 
submitted for Board review.  

 
7. The Board may assign the functions of any management and/or board 

committee, except the Executive Committee, to combined or new 
committees, or to the Board acting as a Committee of the Whole. 

  
8. The Administrator shall, unless otherwise expressly provided, be a non-

voting ex-officio member of all Board committees.  
 

 
154  COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS 

  
1.  Executive Committee 

 
 The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President, 

Secretary, and, when appropriate, the Immediate Past President. The 
President shall be Chair of the Executive Committee and in his or her 
absence the Vice President shall be Chair.  The Immediate Past President 
shall serve as an ex-officio voting member on the Executive Committee only 
for a term of one year following his or her last term as President. The 
Executive Committee shall be empowered to transact all regular business of 
the hospital during the interim between meetings of the Board, provided that 
any action it may take shall not conflict with the policies of the Board.  Any 
action taken by the Executive Committee shall be reported at the next regular 
meeting of the Board and may be rescinded by Board action at the meeting. 
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       ORGANIZATION – 0150 (CONTINUED) 

 
 
2.  Finance Committee 

 
The Finance Committee shall consist of a chair and three members 
appointed by the President.  The duties and responsibilities of the Finance 
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board 
concerning all matters affecting the financial condition of the hospital, 
including but not limited to, the annual budget and capital budget matters 
referred to the committee by the President.  
 

 
A. The Finance Committee will review the annual budget prepared, and 

submitted to the Board, by the hospital administrator. 
 

B. Not later than April 1, the Finance Committee will  complete its review, 
and forward the budget to the Board for approval and submission to 
the City and Borough Manager, as provided in CBJ 40.25.020.  

 
C. The year-end audited financial reports by an outside auditing firm shall 

be reviewed by the Finance Committee and the committee shall report 
conclusions to the Board at the next board meeting.  

 
3.  Planning Committee  

 
The Planning Committee shall consist of a Chair and three members 
appointed by the President. The Planning Committee shall provide 
information to the Board on changes and trends in the health care field that 
may influence the growth and development of the hospital.   
 
A. The Committee may assist in the preparation and modification of long-

range and short-range plans to ensure that the total hospital program is 
attuned to meeting the health care needs of the community served by 
the hospital. Any plan should coordinate the hospital services with 
those of other health care facilities and related community resources. 
 

B. The Board shall provide for institutional planning by including the 
Administration, the Medical Staff, the Nursing Department, other 
department/services, and appropriate advisors in the planning process 
with participation at the Planning Committee meetings. 
 

C. Maintenance and building issues will be referred to the Planning 
Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 131 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS - 0100 

       ORGANIZATION – 0150 (CONTINUED) 
 

4. Quality Assurance Committee 
 

The Quality Assurance Committee shall consist of a Chair and two 
members appointed by the President. 

 
A. The Quality Assurance Committee shall provide information to the 

Board concerning the hospital quality assurance program and the 
mechanisms for monitoring and evaluating quality, identifying and 
resolving problems, and identifying opportunities to improve patient 
care. 
 

B. One member of the Quality Assurance Committee shall be appointed 
annually by the Board to serve as Board liaison to the staff Quality 
Improvement Committee (QIC) 

 
C. The Board shall meet its quality assurance goals by involving the 

Administration, the Medical Staff, the Nursing Department, and 
appropriate advisors regarding quality assurance through participation 
on the Quality Assurance Committee.  

 
5. Joint Conference Committee 

 
The Joint Conference Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee 
of the Board, the executive committee of the Medical Staff and 
representatives from Administration.  One of the Board members shall be 
appointed committee chairperson. 
 
The purpose of this committee is to provide a forum for communications 
between the Medical Staff and the Board of Directors.  
 

6. Special Committees 
 

Special committees may be appointed by the President for special tasks.  
Upon completion of the task for which appointed, such special committees 
shall be discharged. 

 
 
0155  BOARD CALENDAR 
 
The Board shall conduct its business by reference to a calendar which specifies the month 
or date that decisions, resolutions, deliberations, notices, and reports must be made, 
instituted or received by the Board.        
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0161 PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 

Meetings shall be conducted under Robert's Rules of Order, using the edition 
currently adopted by the City and Borough of Juneau, and such amendments of 
these rules as may be adopted by the Board  

 
 
0162 QUORUM  
 

Five members of the Board shall constitute a quorum, and no business shall be 
conducted in the absence of a quorum, other than to adjourn a meeting to a later 
date.  (CBJ Charter 3.12(e)) 

 
 
0163 PRESIDING OFFICER 
 

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board.  In the absence, disability, 
or disqualification of the President, the Vice President shall preside.  In the 
absence, disability, or disqualification of the President and Vice President, the 
Secretary shall preside.  In the absence, disability, removal, or disqualification of 
the President, Vice President, and Secretary, the person with the longest period of 
current consecutive service on the Board shall preside. 

 
 
0164 CALL OF MEETINGS 
 

1. Regular meetings shall be held at least once a month, as provided in CBJ 
40.05.050. 

 
2. Special meetings not regularly scheduled may be called by the President or 

upon the presentation of a petition requesting such a meeting and endorsed by 
a majority of the voting members of the Board. 

 
3. All meetings of the Board and committees of the Board shall be open to the 

public, except as otherwise provided by law.  
 
0165 NOTICE 
 

1. The President shall notify each Board member, in writing and no later than 
three days in advance of the meeting, of the time, date, location, and, to the 
extent it is known, the agenda of any regular meeting.  Notice of the time, date, 
location and purpose of a special Board meeting shall be given to board 
members no later than twenty-four hours in advance of the meeting.  

 
2. Reasonable public notice shall be given for all meetings.  Notice of all Board 

meetings and committee meetings shall be delivered to newspapers of general 
circulation in the municipality and to the commercial radio and television 
stations operating in the municipality at least 24 hours prior to such meetings. 
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  In calling a special meeting this notice shall state the business for the  
  transaction of which the special meeting has been called and no  
  business other than that stated in the notice shall be transacted at such  
  special meeting. 
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0171 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
Board members shall be governed by the CBJ Charter, Section 15.1 and CBJ 
Chapter 01.45 with respect to conflict of interest. 

 
 
0172 VOTING 
 

1. The prevailing vote of at least five members of the Board shall be required for 
official action except that the prevailing vote may be reduced by one vote for 
every two members of the board who are present but who do not vote 
because of a conflict, as more fully set out in CBJ Charter 3.16(e).  

 
2. A board member with a declared conflict of interest on an issue shall be 

excused from voting by the President and must abstain from any discussion 
and/or the vote on the issue.  The President excuses him/herself.  

 
3.  A vote may be taken by voice, show of hands or roll call.  Proxy voting shall 

not be permitted.  At the request of any member, the Board shall be polled. 
 
 
0173 EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
 

  1. If excepted subjects are to be discussed at a meeting, the meeting must 
first be convened as a public meeting and the question of holding an 
executive session to discuss matters that come within the exceptions set 
forth below shall be determined by a majority vote of the Board.  No 
subjects may be considered at the executive session except those 
mentioned in the motion calling for the executive session unless auxiliary 
to the main question.  No action may be taken at the executive session, 
except to give direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the 
handling of a specific legal matter or pending labor negotiations.  

 
The following excepted subjects shall be discussed in an executive session: 

 
A. Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 

adverse effect upon the finances of the government unit; 
 

B. Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 
person, provided the person may request a public discussion; 

 
C. Matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinances are required 

to be confidential.  
 

 
2. Any executive session where the subject to be discussed tends to 

prejudice the reputation and character of any person shall require advance 
notification of the person and the opportunity for the person to request a 
public discussion.  

 
 
 

Page 135 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



        
       BOARD OF DIRECTORS - 0100 
       CONDUCT – 0170 (CONTINUED) 
      
 
0174 HEARING OF PUBLIC 

        
Members of the public present at the meeting of the Board shall be offered a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard in accordance with Board policy. 

 
 

0176 ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Board may at any time recess or adjourn a meeting to a time and place certain.  
Upon resuming, the Board shall commence business at the point in the agenda 
where the motion to recess or adjourn was adopted.  

 
 
0177 CODE OF ETHICS 
 

Members of the Board, including ex officio members, shall at all times abide by 
and conform to the following code of ethics in their capacity as board members: 
 
1. Members of the Board of Directors will conduct the business affairs for the  
 Hospital in good faith and with honesty, integrity and due diligence. 
 
2.  Members of the Board of Directors will exercise proper authority and good  
 judgment in their dealings with staff, patients, and the general public and  
 will respond to all in a responsible, respectful, and professional manner. 
 
3. Each member of the Board of Directors will use his or her best efforts to  
 regularly participate in board activities and will perform his or her duties  
 in a responsible manner. 
 
4.  Upon termination of service, a retiring board member will promptly return  
 to the Hospital all property entrusted to the Board member for the purpose  
 of fulfilling his or her responsibilities. 
 
The Board of Directors must act at all times in the best interests of the Hospital 
and not for personal or third-party gain or financial enrichment.  When 
encountering potential conflicts of interest, board members will identify the 
conflict and, as required, remove themselves from all discussion and voting on the 
matter.  Specifically, board members shall follow these guidelines: 
 
Avoid placing (and avoid the appearance of placing) one’s own self-interest or any 
third-party interest above that of the Hospital; 
 

A. Do not abuse board membership by improperly using board membership 
or the Hospital’s staff, resources or property for personal or third-party 
gain; board members shall not represent that their authority as a board 
member extends any further than that to which it actually extends; 
 

B. Do not engage in any outside business, professional or other activities 
that would materially adversely affect the Hospital; 
 

Page 136 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



C. Do not solicit or accept gifts, gratuities, free trips, honoraria, personal 
property, or any other item of value from any person or entity as a direct 
or indirect inducement to provide special treatment to such donor with 
respect to matters pertaining to the Hospital; 
 

D. Provide goods or services to the Hospital as a paid vendor only after full 
disclosure to the Board. 
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0181 OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 

1. The Board shall keep minutes of all of its board meetings and board committee 
meetings and a record of all proceedings of the Board. 

 
2. All minutes shall be filed in the office of the Administrator in a minutes book as 

the permanent record of the acts of the Board. 
 

3. The minutes shall show the time and place, the members present, the members 
absent, the subjects considered, the actions taken, the vote taken, and any 
other information required by law.  

 
4. Copies of all written reports received at a Board or committee meeting shall be 

attached to the minutes for that meeting. 
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0211 APPOINTMENT 
 

The Chief Executive Officer of the hospital shall be a hospital administrator 
appointed by the Board, after consultation with the CBJ City Manager, only upon 
affirmative vote of a majority of the Board. (CBJ 40.10.010) (40.05.020(d)) 

 
 
0212 VACANCY 
 

Whenever a vacancy occurs, the succession plan as described in the Board 
Manual will be implemented. 

 
0223 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
  
 In addition to the duties and responsibilities set out in CBJ 40.10.020:  
 

1. The Administrator shall have the duties and responsibilities with respect to the 
Board as described in the Board Manual. 

 
2. The Administrator shall fulfill the duties set forth in the administrator’s job 

description. 
 
0241 ANNUAL EVALUATION 

  
Annually, or more frequently as the Board deems necessary, the Board shall 
review the performance of the Administrator.  The President of the Board shall 
inform the Administrator of the results this evaluation.  Minutes of the Board 
meeting shall document the evaluation of the Administrator. 

 
  

Page 139 01 28 2014 Board of Directors packet



MEDICAL STAFF 0300 
        ORGANIZATION 0320 
 
 
0321 MEDICAL STAFF ORGANIZATION AND BYLAWS 
 

The Board serves as the Governing Body for the hospital. The Medical Staff is 
responsible to the Board for the clinical and scientific work of the hospital and 
shall, with the approval of the Board, adopt bylaws, rules, regulations and policies 
for the proper conduct of its work and eligibility for appointment to the hospital 
medical staff.  The Medical Staff bylaws shall be submitted to the Board for its 
approval and shall not become effective until approved by the Board.  The bylaws 
shall include provisions for hearings  on applications for membership on the 
Medical Staff that are consistent with the requirements of due process, federal law, 
state law, and these bylaws. When the Medical Staff reviews or revises its bylaws, 
rules, regulations and policies it will submit its recommendations for amendment 
to the Board for its review and approval.  (CBJ 40.15.040) 

 
 Neither the Medical Staff nor the Board may unilaterally amend the staff bylaws. 

 
0322 SELF-GOVERNING 
 

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work 
performed in the hospital.  It shall: 

 
1. Designate one of its members as Chief of Staff. 

 
2. Hold regular meetings at least once each month for which minutes and records 

of attendance shall be kept. 
 

3.  Review and analyze at regular intervals the clinical experience of the Hospital.   
 Medical records of patients shall be the basis for such review and  analysis.   
 (CBJ 40.15.050) 

 
0351 ACTIONS AND DECISIONS 
 

In accordance with the Medical Staff bylaws adopted pursuant to CBJ 40.15.030 the 
Board, after appropriate action by the Medical Staff, shall take action or make a 
decision on Medical Staff matters, including applications for membership, clinical 
privileges and professional discipline matters.  
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MEDICAL STAFF 0300 
(CONTINUED) 

 
0361 REVIEW OF ACTIONS AND DECISIONS 
 
 

The Medical Staff bylaws shall include procedures for hearings  whereby the 
applicant or member of the Medical Staff shall be afforded a hearing in connection 
with a request for a review of a decision or action taken pursuant to Section 0351 
of these bylaws. 

 
 
0365 REAPPLICATION FOLLOWING DENIAL OR REVOCATION 
 

If an application for membership on the Medical Staff or renewal of membership is 
denied by the Board, or if the Board revokes the membership of a staff member, 
the applicant may reapply for appointment to the Medical Staff after the expiration 
of two years from the date of such denial, unless the Board provides otherwise in 
the formal written denial. 

 
 
0371 BOARD OBLIGATION TO THE MEDICAL STAFF 
 

The Board, through the administrator, shall ensure that the Medical Staff is  
provided with the administrative assistance necessary to conduct quality 
assurance activities in accordance with the hospital's Quality Review Plan. This 
includes the services of the medical record department, and any other 
administrative or technical assistance deemed necessary and appropriate to 
facilitate the Medical Staff's conduct of quality review activities.  The nature and 
the frequency of submission of required reports shall be in accordance with the 
hospital's Quality Review Plan and the Medical Staff bylaws, rules and regulations. 
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Options for Board Education 

It has long been felt that a more structured orientation and continuing education program be developed and used by the Board.  Some thoughts for the Board’s consideration 
follow.  It should be noted that strong administrative buy-in and support is absolutely required if any form of Board education is to have a significant impact. 

Orientation:  A two year orientation, given the general consensus that two years are required before a board member is fully prepared. 

1st 
Year 

Subject Speaker 2nd 
Year 

Subject Speaker Notes 

Jan Organizational chart CEO Jan Regulations CEO  
Feb Financial statements CFO Feb Efficiency, productivity VM  
Mar Committees Bd president Mar Systems methodologies VM  
Apr CE – Full Board  Apr CE – Full Board   
May Financial ratios, revenue cycle CFO May Information technology CIO  
Jun Medical Staff Chief of Staff Jun Electronic health record CIO  
Jul BRH budgets – op, cap, labor CFO Jul Legal considerations Dick  
Aug CE – Full Board  Aug CE – Full Board   
Sep Quality measures Bethany Sep Health care industry CEO  
Oct Compliance John Oct History and trends CEO  
Nov Clinical microsystems CNO Nov Insurance CEO  
Dec CE – Full Board  Dec CE – Full Board   
 

The plan shown above envisions monthly 1 to 1.5 hour presentations.  Alternatives include 1) one three hour session each quarter, 2) one three hour session each month 
finishing the entire two year sequence in one year. 

Speakers might be from the hospital, from local and/or state government, local and/or state organizations based in Juneau, experts brought in, or experts made available via 
Skype. 

Where appropriate BRH examples would be used.  Sessions could be enhanced with selected readings, routine reviews of current healthcare literature and from discussion of 
events occurring both nationally and in Alaska. 

It might help to have a single person coordinate the entire educational program for a variety of reasons. 

The national move towards board member certification should certainly be taken into consideration. 

Continuing Education:  Assuming an effective orientation program, continuing education could be operated three times per year during the months of Apr, Aug, Dec.  CE would 
feature topics of current interest presented using one or more of the mechanisms listed above.  

In addition the Board could consider joint attendance of a conference or workshop such as Estes Park every three years. 
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Credentials Committee 
Hospital Privileges for the Board of Director’s Consideration 

Tuesday, January 28, 2014 5:15 p.m. – Robert F. Valliant Center Boardroom 
 
REAPPOINTMENTS TO THE MEDICAL STAFF:  
Name      Category     Privileges In 
1. Robert A. Breffeilh, MD Active Ophthalmology and Conscious 

Sedation 
 
Dr. Robert A. Breffeilh graduated from the Louisiana State University Medical Center in 1979.  Dr. 
Breffeilh is an ophthalmologist at the Tongass Regional Eye Clinic. 
 
2. John P. Bursell, MD  Active   Physical Medicine and 

Rehabilitation and Fluoroscopic 
Guided Spinal Injection 

 
Dr. John P. Bursell graduated from the University of Washington School of Medicine in 1992.  Dr. 
Bursell is a physical rehabilitation physician at the Juneau Bone and Joint Center. 
 
3. Justine B. Emerson, FNP  AHP   Outpatient Laboratory, Radiology, 

Physical Therapy, Occupational 
Therapy, Respiratory Therapy, 
Infusion Therapy (Ferrlecit, 
Reclast, Zometa), 
Nutritional/Diabetes Consults, 
Sleep Studies and Cardiac Rehab 

 
Ms. Justine B. Emerson graduated from the New York Medical College in Valhalla, NY in 1980.  
Ms. Emerson is a family nurse practitioner for Valley Medical Care. 
 
4. Steven Greer, MD   Courtesy  Family Medicine  
 
Dr. Steven O. Greer graduated from the University of California - San Diego in 1985.  Dr. Greer is 
a family medicine physician that provides Locum Tenens services for S.E.A.R.H.C. - Alder. 
 
5. Joy M. Neyhart, DO  Active   Pediatrics, Pediatrics Newborn,  
 
Dr. Joy M. Neyhart graduated from the University of Medicine and Dentistry of NJ in 1997.  Dr. 
Neyhart is in pediatrician at Rainforest Pediatrics in Juneau. 
 
 
REQUEST FOR WITHDRAWAL:  
1. Harold Bradfield, MD – (Consulting – Vrad; Teleradiology) 
 
MEDICAL STUDENT:  
1. Kirsten Jorgenson, MSI – (WWAMI – Valley Medical Care; Assist With H&P, Observe OB 

and Surgical Procedures and Other Procedures Per Policy 9500.105)  
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TELEMEDICINE:  
1. Edwin Lee, MD - (Consulting – The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
2. Charles Ivester, MD - (Consulting – The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
3. Todunbo Matthews, MD - (Consulting – The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
 
 

 

 
 
 

   Y:\Medical Staff\BOD\2014\2014 01 28 BOD Summary.doc 
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Board Committee meetings 
 
Executive Committee meets 1st Monday of each month 12:00 p.m. 
Kristen Bomengen, President 
Bob Storer, Vice President 
Nancy Davis, Secretary 
Linda Thomas, Past President 
 
Planning Committee meetings 2nd Thursday of each month 12:00 p.m. 
Nate Peimann, MD, Chair 
Bob Storer 
Mary Borthwick 
Mark Johnson  
Kristen Bomengen 
 
Finance Committee meets 3rd Thursday of each month 5:15 p.m. 
Lauree Morton, Chair 
Alex Malter, MD 
Linda Thomas 
Kristen Bomengen 
 
Quality Council meets 2nd Wednesday of each month 12:00 p.m. 
Nancy Davis, Chair 
Mary Borthwick 
Mark Johnson  
Kristen Bomengen  
 
RRC, 4th Monday, quarterly January, April, July, October 12:00 p.m. 
Alex Malter, Liaison  
 
BRH Foundation, 3rd Monday of each month 12:00 p.m. 
Linda Thomas 
 
Credentialing 2nd Tuesday of each month 7:00 a.m. 
Bob Storer 
Nancy Davis 
 
Compliance unclear where this stands at this point 
Mary Borthwick 
 
Bylaws as needed 
Mary Borthwick, Chair 
Nancy Davis 
 
CEO Search Committee as needed 
Linda Thomas, Chair 
Bob Storer 
Mary Borthwick 
 
Physician Recruitment as needed 
Bob Storer, Chair 
Lauree Morton 
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A City and Borough of Juneau Enterprise Fund 

Calendars 2014 
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 February 2014 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 

2 3 
 

N-Executive Committee  BR 

4 
 

5 
 

6 
 

7 8 

9 
 

10 11 
 

7:00-Credentials Committee 
BR 

12 
 

N-Quality Council                 BR 

13 
 

N-Planning Committee    BR 

14 
 

15 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 20 
 

5:15-Finance Committee BR 

21 
 

22 
 

23 24 
 

25 
 

5:15-Board of Directors        BR 

26 27 28 

\ 
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Exec Com 1st Mon Quality Council 2nd Wed Planning Com 2nd Thur Finance Committee 3rd TH Board of Directors 4th Tues
January 6th Noon January 15th Noon January 9th Noon January 16th 5:15 January 28th 5:15
February 3rd Noon February 12th Noon February 13th Noon Febuary 20th 5:15 February 25th 5:15
March 3rd Noon March 12th Noon March 13th Noon March 20th 5:15 March 25th 5:15
April 7th Noon April 9th Noon April 10th Noon April 17th 5:15 April 22nd 5:15
May 5th Noon May 14th Noon May 8th Noon May 15th 5:15 May 27th 5:15
June 2nd Noon June 11th Noon June 12th Noon June 19th 5:15 June 24th 5:15
July 7th Noon July 9th Noon July 10th Noon July 17th 5:15 July 22nd 5:15
August 4th Noon August 13th Noon August 14th Noon August 21st 5:15 August 26th 5:15
Sept. 1st Noon Sept. 10th Noon Sept. 11th Noon Sept. 18th 5:15 Sept. 23rd 5:15
Oct. 6th Noon Oct. 8th Noon Oct. 9th Noon Oct. 16th 5:15 Oct. 28th 5:15
Nov. 3rd Noon Nov. 12th Noon Nov. 13th Noon Nov. 20th 5:15 Nov. 25th 5:15
Dec. 1st Noon Dec. 10th Noon Dec. 11th Noon Dec. 18th 5:15 Dec. 23rd 5:15

Joint Conf. 
4TH MON TBD
February 24th 12:15
May 26th 12:15
August 25th 12:15
Nov. 24th 12:15
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	0240 Evaluation
	AUTHORITY & GENERAL POWERS 0120
	Annually, or more frequently as the Board deems necessary, the Board shall review the performance of the Administrator.  The President of the Board shall inform the Administrator of the results this evaluation.  Minutes of the Board meeting shall docu...
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	POLICY:    It is the policy of Bartlett Regional Hospital to comply with all federal, State of Alaska laws and regulations relating to the proper and safe handling and disposal of all hazardous materials and waste.
	DEFINITIONS:  Hazardous Material:  Any material for which there is a physical or health hazard.
	GOALS:  A. The goals of the Hazardous Materials and Waste Management Plan include the following:
	RESPONSIBILITY:     The Laboratory Manager and members of the subcommittee are responsible for developing and accessing (through monthly swarms) the Hazardous Materials and waste Management Program.
	PROCEDURE:
	A. Hazardous Materials and Waste Selecting, Handling, Storing, Transporting, Using and Disposing from Receipt or Generation through Use or Final Disposal:
	B. Written Criteria is Established Which is Consistent with Local, State and Federal Law to Identify, Evaluate and Inventory Hazardous Materials Used or Generated:
	C. The Management of Chemical Waste, Chemotherapeutic Waste, Radioactive Waste and Regulated Medical Waste (i.e., Sharps):
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	H. Required Manifests for Hazardous Materials and Waste are Maintained:
	I. Hazardous Materials and Waste are Properly Labeled:
	J. Hazardous Materials and Waste Storage and Processing Areas are Separated from Other Areas of the Facility:
	K. An Orientation and Education Program for Employees who Manage or Have Contact with Hazardous Materials and Wastes is in Place:
	REFERENCES:
	ATTACHMENTS:
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